
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION REGULAR 

MEETING 
 

City of Dripping Springs  

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX  

Tuesday, March 28, 2023 at 6:00 PM  

Agenda 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commission Members 
Mim James, Chair 

Tammie Williamson, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

Doug Crosson 

John McIntosh 

Douglas Shumway 

Evelyn Strong 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
Planning Director Tory Carpenter 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

Deputy City Secretary Cathy Gieselman 

IT Director Jason Weinstock 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

1



Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

1. Approval of the February 28, 2023, Planning & Zoning Commission regular meeting 

minutes. 

2. Approval of SUB2022-0012: an application for the Driftwood Phase 3 Section 1 Final 

Plat for a 9.070 acre tract out of the Freelove Woody survey located at 17901 FM 

1826. Applicant: John Blake, P.E.,Murfee Engineering Company, Inc. 

3. Conditional approval of SUB2022-0013: an application for the Driftwood Phase 3 

Section 2 Final Plat for a 34.665 acre tract out of the Freelove Woody survey located at 

17901 FM 1826. Applicant: John Blake, P.E.,Murfee Engineering Company, Inc.  

4. Denial of SUB2022-0005: an application for the Skylight Hills Preliminary Plat for a 

10.00 acre tract out of the S.F.J.W Survey located at 13001 High Sierra. Applicant: Al 

Carroll Jr., Tri-Tech Engineering 

5. Denial of SUB2022-0006: an application for the Wild Ridge Phase 1 Final Plat for a 62.1 

acre tract out of the Philip A. Smith Survey. Applicant: Richard Pham, P.E., Doucet & 

Associates 

 

 

BUSINESS 

6. Public hearing and consideration of approval of SUB2023-0004: an application for the 

Driftwood 967, Phase 1, Lot 2 Replat. Applicant: John Blake, P.E.,Murfee 

Engineering Company, Inc. 

a. Staff Report 

b. Public Hearing 

c. Replat 

7. Public hearing and recommendation of an ordinance regarding CUP2023-0001: an 

application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a warehouse/office use at 27950 RR 

12. Applicant: Jon Thompson 

a. Applicant Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Public Hearing 

d. Recommendation 

 

2



8. Public hearing and recommendation of an ordinance rezoning a 97.44-acre property to 

Planned Development District with a base zoning of SF-3 and GR, with 68.38-acres of 

residential uses, approximately 6.7-acres of commercial uses, and approximately 22.36-

acres of open space, as amended by the ordinance language herein, for property located 

on U.S. 290 and north of the intersection of Drifting Wind Run commonly known as 

“Gateway Village”. Applicant:  John Doucet, Doucet and Associates 

a. Applicant Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Public Hearing 

d. Recommendation 

9. Public hearing and recommendation of an ordinance regarding ZA2023-0001: an 

application for a zoning map amendment from Agriculture (AG) to 

Commercial Services (CS) for approximately 5.02 acres out of the C. H. Mallot Survey 

located at 1300 E US 290. Applicant: Victor Ostiguin, Doucet & Associates 

a. Applicant Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Public Hearing 

d. Recommendation 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REPORTS 

10. Planning Department Report 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to  discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney),  551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
April 11, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

April 25, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

May 9, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

May 23, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 
April 4, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

April 18, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

May 2, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

May 16, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

 

3



ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

Texas Codes. Annotated.  In addition, the Commission may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any 

Commissioner for absence from this meeting. 

I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingsprings.com, on March 24, 2023, at 11:30 a.m. 

 

 
Deputy City Secretary 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

4



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  February 28, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

City of Dripping Springs 

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX 

Tuesday, February 28, 2023, at 6:00 PM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  

With a quorum of the Commission present, Chair James called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commission Members present were: 
Mim James, Chair 

Tammie Williamson, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

Doug Crosson 

John McIntosh 

Douglas Shumway 

Evelyn Strong 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials present were: 
Planning Director Tory Carpenter 

Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

Mayor Bill Foulds, Jr. 

Deputy City Secretary Cathy Gieselman 

Mayor Pro Tem Taline Manassian 

HDR Engineering P.E. Leslie Pollack 

TIRZ Project Manager Keenan Smith 

IT Director Jason Weinstock 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Vice Chair Williamson led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

5

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  February 28, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Presentation and discussion regarding the Old Fitzhugh Road Project. 

 

Keenan Smith presented the staff report which is on file.  A public meeting to provide an 

update on the project has been scheduled for March 29, 2023, at City Hall, Committee 

members were encouraged to attend. 

 

Leslie Pollack addressed questions regarding timeframe of traffic signal at Heritage and 

retaining the flashing beacon at Old Fitzhugh until traffic flows are determined.  Will continue 

to work with TxDOT; projected signal timeframe is 2024 and the flashing beacon will remain 

in place until traffic flows are determined. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

 

2. Approval of the January 24, 2023, Planning & Zoning Commission regular meeting 

minutes. 

3. Conditional approval of SUB2021-0073: an application for the Hardy T Land 

Preliminary Plat for a 78.02 acre tract located at the intersection of Bunker Ranch 

Boulevard and Ross Street out of the Benjamin F. Hannah Survey. Applicant: Brian 

Estes, P.E., Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc. 

4. Denial of SUB2022-0047: an application for the Ariza 290 West final plat for a 19.16 

acre tract out of the E. B. Hargraves and Hermon Benson surveys located at 13900 W 

US 290. Applicant: Katie Stewart, P.E. Pape-Dawson Engineers 

5. Conditional approval of SUB2022-0041: an application for the Hays Street Preliminary 

Plat for a 1.855 acre tract located at 102 Bluff Street out of the Town of Dripping Springs 

survey. Applicant: Joe Grasso, P.E., Doucet & Associates. 

6. Approval of SUB2022-0030: an application for the Burke Subdivision Lot 1A Replat for 

a 14.54 acre tract located at 20650 FM 150. Applicant: Jon Thompson 

6

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  February 28, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

7. Conditional approval of SUB2022-0002: an application for the Hays Street Subdivision 

final plat for a 1.855 acre tract out of the Phillip A. Smith Survey located at 102 South 

Bluff Street. Applicant: Joe Grasso, P.E. Doucet & Associates 

8. Conditional approval of SUB2022-0049: an application for the Serenity Hills 

Preliminary Plat for a 104.335 acre tract located at 1111 Hays Country Acres Road out 

of the Richard Vaughan Survey. Applicant: Gregg Andrulis, Civil Insite, LLC. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Strong to approve Consent Agenda Items 2 – 8.  Vice Chair 

Williamson seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

BUSINESS 

9. Presentation and discussion of an Ordinance rezoning a 97.44-acre property to Planned 

Development District with a base zoning of SF-3 and GR, with 68.38-acres of residential 

uses, approximately 6.7-acres of commercial uses, and approximately 22.36-acres of 

open space, as amended by the ordinance language herein, for property located on U.S. 

290 and north of the intersection of Drifting Wind Run commonly known as “Gateway 

Village”. Applicant:  John Doucet, Doucet and Associates 

a. Applicant Presentation – Peter Verdichhio provided a summary presentation and 

along with Matthew Scrivener, Developer for Meritage Homes, and Rex Baker, were 

available for questions from the Commission. 

b. Staff Report - Tory Carpenter presented the staff report which is on file. 

c. Public Hearing – No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

d. Discussion – Chair James asked each of the Commissioners to share any 

questions/concerns which were addressed by Tory Carpenter, Peter Varricchio, John 

Doucet and Rex Baker. 

No action was taken regarding this item.  

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REPORTS 

10. Planning Department Report 

Tory Carpenter presented the staff report which is on file. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to  discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney),  551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

 

The Commission did not meet in Executive Session. 

7

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  February 28, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
March 14, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

March 28, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

April 11, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

April 25, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 
March 7, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

March 21, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

April 4, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

April 18, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

ADJOURN 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Strong to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Shumway seconded the 

motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  

This regular meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 

  

 

8

Item 1.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 
  

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
March 28, 2023 

Project No:  SUB2022-0012 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP - Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Driftwood Subdivision, Phase 3 Section 1 Final Plat 

Property Location: 17901 FM 1826, Driftwood, TX 78619 

Legal Description: 9.070 acres, out of the Freelove Woody Survey 

Applicant: John Blake, Murfee Engineering Company 

Property Owner: Driftwood DLC Investor I LP 

Staff recommendation: Approval 

9

Item 2.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The site currently is comprised of a single-family residence including various ancillary buildings. The site is proposed as 

one commercial lot. 

Access and Transportation 

Primary access to the subdivision will be through FM 1826. 

Site Information 

Location: Intersection of FM 967 and FM 1826 

Zoning Designation: ETJ / Driftwood Development Agreement 

 

Property History 

The driftwood development agreement was approved in 2015.  

Recommendation 

Approval. 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Subdivision Application 

Exhibit 2 – Driftwood Subdivision Phase 3 Section 1 Final Plat 

 

Recommended Action Approval 

Alternatives/Options N/A 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments No comments have been received at the time of the report.  

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



All requited items and information (including all applicable below listed exhibits and fees) must be
received by the City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions
will not be deemed filed and complete. By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and
met all requirements for a complete submittal:

ApplicantsSignature:

___________________________

Date:

___________________________

FINAL, REPLAT, MINOR, AND AMENDING PLAT CHECKLIST

Subdivision Ordinance, Section 5

STAFF

El Completed application form — including all required notarized signatures

El Application fee (refer to Fee Schedule)

El Digital Copies/PDF of all submitted items

El County Application Submittal — proof of online submission (if applicable)

El ESD #6 Application (if within City or Development Agreement) or

Proof of Submittal to Hays County Fire Marshal (if in the ETJ)

El $240 Fee for ESD #6 Application (if applicable)

El Billing Contact Form

U Engineer’s Summary Report

El Drainage Report — if not included in the Engineer’s summary

El El Geological Assessment Identifying Critical Environmental Features [Sub. Ord.
4.8(l)(4)] (if applicable)

El El 05SF Facility Planning Report or approved OSSF permit (if applicable)

El FinalPlats(llxl7toscale)

U El Copy of Current Configuration of Plat (if applicable)

El Copy of Preliminary Plat (if applicable)

El Proof of final acceptance of all public infrastructure by the jurisdiction that will own
and maintain it; or posting of fiscal for public infrastructure.

El Digital Data (GlS) of Subdivision

El Tax Certificates — verifying that property taxes are current

El Copy of Notice Letter to the School District — notifying of preliminary submittal

El Outdoor_Lighting_Ordinance_Compliance_Agreement

APPLICANT

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAIUNG: PD Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620

512.858.4725 • dtyofdrippingsprings.com

Page 7 of 12 17

Item 2.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



El Development_Agreement/PDD_(If_applicable)

El Cost estimate of public infrastructure improvements (all public infrastructure
improvements including water, wastewater, roads, drainage, curbs, sidewalks, etc.)
(if applicable).

*A Final Plat application will not be accepted if staff has not already approved this.

El El Documentation showing approval of driveway locations (TxDOT, County)

U El Documentation showing Hays County 911 Addressing approval (If applicable)

El El Parkland Dedication fee (if applicable)

El $25 Public Notice Sign Fee

El El Ag Facility Fees - $35 per residential LUE (if applicable)

El Proof of Utility Service (Water & Wastewater) or permit to serve

El El Geologic Assessment Identifying Critical Environmental Features [Sub. Ord. 4.8(l)(4)]

El l Pre-Application Meeting Form signed by City Staff

FINAL PLAT INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

U El
A vicinity, or location, map that shows the location of the proposed Plat within
the City (or within its ETJ) and in relationship to existing roadways.

El El Boundary lines, abstract/survey lines, corporate and other jurisdictional
x boundaries, existing or proposed highways and street right-of-way, bearings

and distances sufficient to locate the exact area proposed for the subdivision,
and all survey monuments including any required concrete monuments (per
the City Engineer); the length and beating of all straight lines, radii, arc lengths,
tangent lengths and central angles of all curves shall be indicated along the
lines of each lot or Unit (curve and line data may be placed in a table format);
accurate reference ties via courses and distances to at least one recognized
abstract or survey corner or existing subdivision corner shall be shown.

El El The name, location and recording information of all adjacent subdivisions (or
x property owners of adjacent unplatted property), including those located on

the other sides of roads or creeks, shall be drawn to the same scale and shown
in dotted lines adjacent to the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient
detail to show accurately the existing streets, alleys, building setbacks, lot and
block numbering, easements, and other features that may influence the
layout of development of the proposed subdivision; adjacent unplatted land
shall show property lines, the names of owners of record, and the recording
information.

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PD Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com

Page 8 of 12 18

Item 2.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



Li Li The location, widths and names of all street right-of-way and easements (it
x shall be the applicant’s responsibility to coordinate with appropriate utility

entities for placement of necessary utility easements and for location of all
streets and median openings on highways or arterial roadways), existing or
proposed, within the subdivision limits and adjacent to the subdivision; a list
of proposed street names shall be submitted (in the form of a letter or memo
along with the application form) for all new street names (Street name
approval_is_required_at_the_time_the_Plat_is_approved)

Li Li The location of all existing property lines, existing lot and block numbers and
x date recorded, easements of record (with recording information),

Proposed
arrangement and square footage of lots or Units (including lot and

block numbers or Unit numbers).

Li Li All sheets shall have a title block which shows the title or name under which
x the proposed subdivision is to be recorded; the name, address and phone

number of the property owner(s); the name, address and phone number of
the licensed engineer or registered professional land surveyor who prepared
the plat/plans; the scale of the plat/plans; the date the plat/plan was
prepared; and the location of the property according to the abstract or survey
records of Hays County, Texas.

Li Li Sites, if any, to be reserved or dedicated for parks, schools, playgrounds,
other public uses or for private facilities or amenities

Li Li Scale (including a graphic scale), date, north arrow oriented to the top or left
x side of the sheet, and other pertinent informational data

Li Li All physical features of the property to be subdivided shall be shown,
x including:

- The location and size of all watercourses; and

- 100-year floodplain according to Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) information; and

- Water Quality Buffer Zones as required by [WOO 22.05.017]

- Drainage ways and drainage easements. Drainage easements are required
for bypass of any offsite flows and for concentrated flows conveyed across
lots. Drainage easements shall be large enough to contain the 100-yr storm
[Sub. Ord. 12.2.2].

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers flowage easement requirements; and

- All critical environmental features (CEFs) such as karsts, springs, sinkholes,

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PD Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingspñngs.com

Page 9 of 12 19

Item 2.



caves, etc., to be located and documentation to be signed and certified by a
geologist. All CEF to have a minimum setback of 150’. All designated wetlands
to be certified as such by an accredited wetland biologist relying the presence
of wetlands plant species.

- Drainage area in acres or area draining into subdivisions (to be included in
drainage report and construction plans); and

LI LI Existing zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties if within the
x city limits.

LI LI Provide notes identifying the following:
x • Owner responsible for operation and maintenance of stormwater

facilities.

. Owner/operator of water and wastewater utilities.

• Owner/operator of roadway facilities

LI LI
Certificates and other language shall be included on the plat, pursuant to the

following
Subsections: A statement signed by the property owner(s) and

acknowledged before a Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally
owned by the applicant.

- A statement signed by the property owner(s) and acknowledged before a
Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally owned by the applicant.

- An accurate legal, such as by metes and bounds, description by bearings
and distances (including necessary curve and line data), accurate to the
nearest one hundredth of a foot, for all boundary, block and lot lines, with
descriptions correlated to a permanent survey monument.

- The registered professional land surveyor’s certificate, with a place for his
or her signature and notarization of his or her signature.

- A place for plat approval signature of the Chair or Vice Chair, in the Chair’s
absence) of the Planning and Zoning Commission, a place for the City
Secretary to attest such signature, and the approval dates by Planning and
Zoning Commission.

- Appendices to this Chapter contain certificates and languages to be used
on the plat to accommodate the above requirements:

PHYSICAL: 5llMercer5treet • MAILING: P06ox384 • DrippingSpcings,1X78620

512.858.4725 • cftyofdrippingsprings.com

Page 10 of 12 20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 
  

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
March 28, 2023 

Project No:  SUB2022-0013 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP – Planning Director 

Item Details 

Project Name: Driftwood Subdivision, Phase 3 Section 1 Final Plat 

Property Location: 17901 FM 1826, Driftwood, TX 78619 

Legal Description: A0020 FREELOVE WOODY SURVEY, ACRES 43.7352  

Applicant: John Blake, Murfee Engineering Company 

Property Owner: Driftwood DLC Investor I LP 

Staff recommendation: 

Approval of the final plat with the following conditions: 

1. Public infrastructure is complete and accepted by the jurisdiction that will 

own it; or 

2. Fiscal surety is posted and approved by the jurisdiction that will own it. 

27

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The site currently is comprised of a single-family residence including various ancillary buildings. The site is proposed to 

become a 13-lot subdivision, 11 lots of which are residential, 1 open space, and 1 private street. 

Access and Transportation 

Primary access to the subdivision will be through FM 1826. 

Site Information 

Location: 17901 FM 1826, Driftwood, TX 78619 

Zoning Designation: ETJ / Driftwood Development Agreement 

 

Property History 

The driftwood development agreement was approved in 2015.  

Recommendation 

Approval with the following condition: 

1. Public infrastructure is complete and accepted by the jurisdiction that will own it; or 

2. Fiscal surety is posted and approved by the jurisdiction that will own it. 

 

 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Subdivision Application 

Exhibit 2 – Driftwood Subdivision Phase 3 Section 2 Final Plat 

 

Recommended Action Denial based on outstanding comments. 

Alternatives/Options N/A 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments No comments have been received at the time of the report.  

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



31

Item 3.



32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



34

Item 3.



35

Item 3.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



36

Item 3.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



37

Item 3.



38

Item 3.



39

Item 3.



40

Item 3.



41

Item 3.



42

Item 3.



43

Item 3.



44

Item 3.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 
  

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
March 28, 2023 

Project No:  SUB2023-0005 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP – Planning Director 

Item Details 

Project Name: Skylight Hills Preliminary Plat 

Property Location: 13001 High Sierra 

Legal Description: 10.00 acres out of the S.F.I.W Survey 

Applicant: Al Carroll, Jr., Tri-Tech Engineering 

Property Owner: Logan Middleton, Frame Middleton, LLC 

Staff recommendation: Denial of the Preliminary Plat to address comments.  

45

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

This final plat consists of 11 single family lots in the ETJ. The developer will construct a new dead-end street to access the 

lots.  

Site Information 

Location: Thurman 13001 High Sierra 

Zoning Designation: ETJ 

Recommendation 

Denial to allow the applicant to address comments.  

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Subdivision Application 

Exhibit 2 – Preliminary Plat 

Exhibit 3 – Outstanding Comments 

Recommended Action Denial of the Plat 

Alternatives/Options N/A 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments No comments have been received at the time of the report.  

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

46

Item 4.



      

 
     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: March 24, 2023 
 

   

      

Al Carroll 
 

 

   

      

Permit Number: SUB2023-0005 
Project Name: Skylight Hills Prelim 
Project Address: 13001 & 13111 High Sierra, Austin , TX 78737 

 

  

City Planner Comments 
The following comments have been provided by Tory Carpenter. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Tory Carpenter by email tcarpenter@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

1. Provide Hays County 1445 approval. [4.8.3] 
2. 5 foot sidewalks are required along frontages of all streets [15.2] 
3. Label the plat as "Skylight Hill's Preliminary Plat" throughout the document. 
4. Note that payment of the parkland fee in lieu is required prior to approval of the final plat. 
5. Remove all reference to the Hays County Clerk and recordation of this plat since preliminary plats 

are not recorded.  
6. In the City approval statement, replace "replat" with "preliminary plat" and replace "City Council" 

with "Planning & Zoning Commission," 
7. Replace the Mayor's Signature with "Planning & Zoning Commission Chair or Vice Chair." 

Engineer/Public Works Comments 
The following comments have been provided by Chad Gilpin. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Chad Gilpin by email cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

8.  Add a note naming who will be responsible for operation and maintenance of Stormwater Detention 
and Water Quality Ponds. [Plat Information Requirements] 
 

9. Please clarify if Paisano Trail, Paisano Pass and High Sierra are County Roads or private access 
easements.  The plat shows them as easements.  If they are County Roads I expect the County will 
want the easement dedicated as ROW. 
 
 

10. Note the Name of Watershed on the cover sheet. [Site Development Info Requirements Checklist] 
 
 

11. Provide Signature Blocks for the West Travis PUA 
 

47

Item 4.



3/24/2023 10:59:22 AM 
Skylight Hills Prelim 
SUB2023-0005 
Page 2 

 

 

  

 
12. Provide a Geologic Assessment Identifying Wetlands and Critical Environmental Features [Sub Ord 

4.7(l)(4)] 
 
 

13. Show and label the spread of the 100-yr flow for existing drainage ways within the tract. 
[Subdivision Ordinance 12.2.2] Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, drainageway or 
channel, there shall be provided a storm drainage easement conforming substantially with the 100-
year floodplain of such course and of such additional width as may be designated by the City 
Engineer, subject to determination according to proper engineering considerations. 
 
 

14. Show drainage easements for any offsite flows you intend to bypass through your property.  
Construction plans show 2 bypass channels proposed.  Drainage easement shall be large enough to 
contain the 100-yr storm [Sub. Ord. 12.2.2]. 
 
 

15. Show where are detention facilities to be located? Detention facilities are required to demonstrate 
that proposed flows are required to be less than or equal to existing flows leaving the property. To 
waive the requirement for detention you will need to show that it is in fact a detriment to provide 
detention. [Hays County Development Regs, Chapter 725, Section 3.02] 
 
 

16. Provide a sidewalk and trails plan [Preliminary Plat Information Requirements]. 
 
 

17. 5ft Sidewalks are required along frontage of all streets. [Sub Ord 15.2] 
 
 

18. Provide a Construction Traffic Plan showing proposed routes for construction vehicle traffic and 
points of ingress and egress of such vehicles during construction. [Preliminary Plat Information 
Requirements]. 
 
 

19. Provide impervious cover breakdown.  Identify existing and proposed impervious cover and break 
out paving, buildings, sidewalks, rooftops, etc. [Site Development Plan Requirements Checklist] 
 
 

20. The Final Plat cannot be approved until either; 
a. Construction of Public Infrastructure is complete and accepted by the Jurisdiction that will own it; 
OR 
b. Fiscal Surety is posted and approved by the Jurisdiction that will own the Public Infrastructure. 
 

 

      

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
48

Item 4.



3/24/2023 10:59:22 AM 
Skylight Hills Prelim 
SUB2023-0005 
Page 3 

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49

Item 4.



50

Item 4.



51

Item 4.



52

Item 4.



53

Item 4.



54

Item 4.



55

Item 4.



56

Item 4.



57

Item 4.



58

Item 4.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



59

Item 4.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



60

Item 4.



61

Item 4.



62

Item 4.



63

Item 4.



64

Item 4.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 
  

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
March 28, 2023 

Project No:  SUB2023-0006 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP – Planning Director 

Item Details 

Project Name: Wild Ridge Phase 1 Final Plat (PDD #13) 

Property Location: E US 290 

Legal Description: 62.1 acres, out of the  I.V. Davis Jr. and Edward W. Brown surveys   

Applicant: Richard Pham, P.E., Doucet & Associate, Inc. 

Property Owner: Rob Archer, Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC 

Staff recommendation: Denial of the Final Plat based on outstanding comments 

65

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

This final plat consists of 136 single-family lots. 

Access and Transportation 

This final plat includes the extension of Wild Ridge Blvd US 290 through the development.  

Site Information 

Location: US 290 1.25 miles east of Ranch Road 12 

Zoning Designation: PDD #13 

 

Property History 

The Planned Development District was approved August 2021.  

Recommendation 

Denial to address comments.  

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Subdivision Application 

Exhibit 2 – Preliminary Plat 

Exhibit 3 – Outstanding Comments Letter 

 

Recommended Action Disapproval of the Plat with the outstanding comments. 

Alternatives/Options N/A 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments No comments have been received at the time of the report.  

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

66

Item 5.



City of Dripping Springs 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com 

 

Revised 10.2.2019   Page 1 of 12 

 

 

SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 
 

 

 
CONTACT INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

MEETINGS REQUIRED  
(AS APPLICABLE PER SITE DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE) 

 
INFORMAL 
CONSULTATION  

 
PRE-APPLICATION 
CONFERENCE 

  

 

DATE: 
______________     

 NOT 
SCHEDULED 

 

DATE: 
______________        

 NOT SCHEDULED 
  

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________  
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________  
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

PLAT TYPE 

� Amending Plat 

� Minor Plat 

� Replat 

� Final Plat 

� Plat Vacation 

� Other:_______________ 

5/19/2021 10/20/2022

Richard Pham, P.E.

Doucet & Associates, Inc.

10800 Pecan Park Blvd., Suite 140

Austin TX 78750

512-806-0307 rpham@doucetengineers.com

Rob Archer

Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC

8920 Business Park Drive, Suite 350

Austin TX 78759

512-615-6432 rob.archer@meritagehomes.com

✔

67

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 12 

 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
PROPERTY OWNER NAME  

PROPERTY ADDRESS  

CURRENT LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION  

 

TAX ID #  

LOCATED IN  � City Limits 

� Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

CURRENT LAND ACREAGE  

SCHOOL DISTRICT  

ESD DISTRICT(S)   

ZONING/PDD/OVERLAY  

EXISTING ROAD FRONTAGE � Private                                Name: _____________________ 

� State                                    Name: _____________________  

� City/County (public)          Name: _____________________ 

DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT?  

(If so, please attach 
agreement) 

� Yes (see attached)  

� Not Applicable  

Development Agreement Name: _____________________________ 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE? � YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE BARTON SPRINGS CONTRIBUTING ZONE TO THE 
EDWARDS AQUIFER? 

� YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY WITHIN A FEMA FLOODPLAIN AS DEFINED BY THE MOST CURRENT 
FIRM?  

� YES    � NO 

 

 

 

 

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC

E US 290, Dripping Springs, TX 78620

130.2-acre tract of land, 8.787-acre tract of land, 17.88-acre tract of land

R19907, R184801, R185284

62.1 acres

DSISD

ESD 1 & 6

PDD #13

N/A

US 290

Wild Ridge MUD

68

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 12 

 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION 
NAME 

 

TOTAL ACREAGE OF 
DEVELOPMENT 

 

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS  

AVERAGE SIZE OF LOTS  

INTENDED USE OF LOTS � RESIDENTIAL     � COMMERCIAL    � INDUSTRIAL/OTHER:________________ 

# OF LOTS PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

 

ACREAGE PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

 

LINEAR FEET (ADDED) OF 
PROPOSED ROADS 

PUBLIC:________________ 

PRIVATE:_______________ 

ANTICIPATED 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM 

� CONVENTIONAL SEPTIC SYSTEM 

� CLASS I (AEROBIC) PERMITTED SYSTEM 

� PUBLIC SEWER                

WATER SOURCES SURFACE WATER 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY 

� RAIN WATER 

GROUND WATER* 

� PUBLIC WELL 

� SHARED WELL 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY                

*IF DOING GROUND WATER PROVISION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT USING GROUNDWATER RESOURCES, 
THE HAYS-TRINITY GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MUST BE NOTIFIED:  

HAYS-TRINITY GCD NOTIFIED?       � YES    � NO 

X X

X

X

Wild Ridge Phase 1

Development is made up of approximately 62.1 acres and includes 136 single-family residential
lots, a commercial lot, a network of minor arterial and local roadways, water quality/detention
pond, utilities to serve development, public/private parkland, and undisturbed open space.

142

0.4 acre

136

1

0

50.8

2.9

0

9,930

None

69

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 12 

 

 

COMMENTS: ________________________________________ 

 

TITLE: ______________________ SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 

 

 

PUBLIC UTILITY CHECKLIST 

 

ELECTRIC PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _______________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

COMMUNICATIONS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ______________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

WATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

WASTEWATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ___________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

GAS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ____________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 
 

 

 

PARKLAND DEDICATION? AGRICULTURE FACILITIES (FINAL PLAT)? 

� YES    � NOT APPLICABLE � YES    � NOT APPLICABLE 

 

 

 

X

X

X

X

X

(See Wastewater Agreement)

X X

Richard Pham, P.E. Richard Pham
Digitally signed by Richard Pham
DN: CN=Richard Pham, OU=Users-Austin 
Corp, DC=int, DC=doucetandassociates, 
DC=com
Date: 2023.02.16 16:20:09-06'00'

PEC

Frontier Communications

WTCPUA

City of Dripping Springs

Texas Gas Service

70

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 5 of 12 

 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE?* 

 

(See attached agreement) 

 

*If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with the Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If 
proposed subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development 
Agreement, or as a condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  

 

Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor 
Lighting tab on the city’s website at www.cityofdrippingsprings.com and online Lighting Ordinance 
under the Code of Ordinances tab for more information).  

 

� YES (REQUIRED)    � YES (VOLUNTARY*)   � NO  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X

71

Item 5.



72

Item 5.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com

Page 7 of 12

All required items and information (including all applicable below listed exhibits and fees) must be 
received by the City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions 
will not be deemed filed and complete. By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and 
met all requirements for a complete submittal: 

Applicants Signature: _________________________________   Date: _________________________________

                                                        

FINAL, REPLAT, MINOR, AND AMENDING PLAT CHECKLIST 
Subdivision Ordinance, Section 5

STAFF APPLICANT

� �� Completed application form – including all required notarized signatures 

� �� Application fee (refer to Fee Schedule)

� �� Digital Copies/PDF of all submitted items 

�� �� County Application Submittal – proof of online submission (if applicable) 

� �� ESD #6 Application (if within City or Development Agreement) or 

Proof of Submittal to Hays County Fire Marshal (if in the ETJ)

� � $240 Fee for ESD #6 Application (if applicable) 

� � Billing Contact Form

� � Engineer’s Summary Report

� � Drainage Report – if not included in the Engineer’s summary

� � Geological Assessment Identifying Critical Environmental Features [Sub. Ord. 
4.8(I)(4)] (if applicable)

� � OSSF Facility Planning Report or approved OSSF permit (if applicable)

� � Final Plats (11 x 17 to scale)  

� � Copy of Current Configuration of Plat (if applicable) 

� � Copy of Preliminary Plat (if applicable) 

� � Proof of final acceptance of all public infrastructure by the jurisdiction that will own 
and maintain it; or posting of fiscal for public infrastructure.

� � Digital Data (GIS) of Subdivision

� � Tax Certificates – verifying that property taxes are current

� � Copy of Notice Letter to the School District – notifying of preliminary submittal

� � Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement

X
X
X

X

X
X

X
See Engineering Report

X
N/A

N/A

X
X

X
X
X
X

X
X

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Richard Pham
Digitally signed by Richard Pham
DN: CN=Richard Pham, OU=Users-Austin 
Corp, DC=int, DC=doucetandassociates, 
DC=com
Date: 2023.02.16 16:20:21-06'00'

2/16/2023

N/A

73

Item 5.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com

Page 8 of 12

� �� Development Agreement/PDD (If applicable)

� �� Cost estimate of public infrastructure improvements (all public infrastructure 
improvements including water, wastewater, roads, drainage, curbs, sidewalks, etc.) 
(if applicable). 

*A Final Plat application will not be accepted if staff has not already approved this.

� � Documentation showing approval of driveway locations (TxDOT, County) 

� � Documentation showing Hays County 911 Addressing approval (If applicable)

� � Parkland Dedication fee (if applicable) 

� � $25 Public Notice Sign Fee

� � Ag Facility Fees - $35 per residential LUE (if applicable)

� � Proof of Utility Service (Water & Wastewater) or permit to serve

� � Geologic Assessment Identifying Critical Environmental Features [Sub. Ord. 4.8(I)(4)]

� � Pre-Application Meeting Form signed by City Staff

FINAL PLAT INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS
� � A vicinity, or location, map that shows the location of the proposed Plat within 

the City (or within its ETJ) and in relationship to existing roadways.

� � Boundary lines, abstract/survey lines, corporate and other jurisdictional 
boundaries, existing or proposed highways and street right-of-way, bearings 
and distances sufficient to locate the exact area proposed for the subdivision, 
and all survey monuments including any required concrete monuments (per 
the City Engineer); the length and bearing of all straight lines, radii, arc lengths, 
tangent lengths and central angles of all curves shall be indicated along the 
lines of each lot or Unit (curve and line data may be placed in a table format); 
accurate reference ties via courses and distances to at least one recognized 
abstract or survey corner or existing subdivision corner shall be shown.

� � The name, location and recording information of all adjacent subdivisions (or 
property owners of adjacent unplatted property), including those located on 
the other sides of roads or creeks, shall be drawn to the same scale and shown 
in dotted lines adjacent to the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient 
detail to show accurately the existing streets, alleys, building setbacks, lot and 
block numbering, easements, and other features that may influence the 
layout of development of the proposed subdivision; adjacent unplatted land 
shall show property lines, the names of owners of record, and the recording 
information.

X

X

X

Pending approvalX
N/A

N/A

N/A

X

X

X

X

X

X

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

74

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 9 of 12 

 

�� � The location, widths and names of all street right-of-way and easements (it 
shall be the applicant’s responsibility to coordinate with appropriate utility 
entities for placement of necessary utility easements and for location of all 
streets and median openings on highways or arterial roadways), existing or 
proposed, within the subdivision limits and adjacent to the subdivision; a list 
of proposed street names shall be submitted (in the form of a letter or memo 
along with the application form) for all new street names (street name 
approval is required at the time the Plat is approved) 

� � The location of all existing property lines, existing lot and block numbers and 
date recorded, easements of record (with recording information), 

� � Proposed arrangement and square footage of lots or Units (including lot and 
block numbers or Unit numbers). 

� � All sheets shall have a title block which shows the title or name under which 
the proposed subdivision is to be recorded; the name, address and phone 
number of the property owner(s); the name, address and phone number of 
the licensed engineer or registered professional land surveyor who prepared 
the plat/plans; the scale of the plat/plans; the date the plat/plan was 
prepared; and the location of the property according to the abstract or survey 
records of Hays County, Texas.  

� � Sites, if any, to be reserved or dedicated for parks, schools, playgrounds, 
other public uses or for private facilities or amenities 

� � Scale (including a graphic scale), date, north arrow oriented to the top or left 
side of the sheet, and other pertinent informational data 

� � All physical features of the property to be subdivided shall be shown, 
including: 

- The location and size of all watercourses; and 

- 100-year floodplain according to Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) information; and 

- Water Quality Buffer Zones as required by [WQO 22.05.017] 

- Drainage ways and drainage easements.  Drainage easements are required 
for bypass of any offsite flows and for concentrated flows conveyed across 
lots.  Drainage easements shall be large enough to contain the 100-yr storm 
[Sub. Ord. 12.2.2]. 

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers flowage easement requirements; and 

- All critical environmental features (CEFs) such as karsts, springs, sinkholes, 

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

75

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 10 of 12 

 

caves, etc., to be located and documentation to be signed and certified by a 
geologist. All CEF to have a minimum setback of 150’. All designated wetlands 
to be certified as such by an accredited wetland biologist relying the presence 
of wetlands plant species.  

- Drainage area in acres or area draining into subdivisions (to be included in 
drainage report and construction plans); and 

 

�� � Existing zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties if within the 
city limits. 

� � Provide notes identifying the following: 
 Owner responsible for operation and maintenance of stormwater 

facilities. 

 Owner/operator of water and wastewater utilities. 

 Owner/operator of roadway facilities 

� � Certificates and other language shall be included on the plat, pursuant to the 
following Subsections: A statement signed by the property owner(s) and 
acknowledged before a Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally 
owned by the applicant. 

- A statement signed by the property owner(s) and acknowledged before a 
Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally owned by the applicant.  

- An accurate legal, such as by metes and bounds, description by bearings 
and distances (including necessary curve and line data), accurate to the 
nearest one hundredth of a foot, for all boundary, block and lot lines, with 
descriptions correlated to a permanent survey monument. 

- The registered professional land surveyor’s certificate, with a place for his 
or her signature and notarization of his or her signature. 

- A place for plat approval signature of the Chair or Vice Chair, in the Chair’s 
absence) of the Planning and Zoning Commission, a place for the City 
Secretary to attest such signature, and the approval dates by Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 

- Appendices to this Chapter contain certificates and languages to be used 
on the plat to accommodate the above requirements: 

 

 

 

 

X

X

X

76

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 
NARRATIVE OF COMPLIANCE 

A written narrative describing how all portions of the subdivision meets all requirements of this code 
and other codes, including landscaping, lighting, parkland dedication, site development, water quality 
protection, and zoning, as may be relevant.  

Outdoor Lighting,    
Article 24.06 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Parkland Dedication, 
Article 28.03 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Landscaping and Tree 
Preservation, Article 
28.06 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Per PDD, outdoor lighting will be constructed in accordance to the
City's Outdoor Lighting Ordinance.

At full development, Parkland Dedication is required to provide 41.7
acres of parkland per approved PDD. For Phase 1, provided credited
parkland is 14.2 acres and the remainder will be provided in future
phases.

Per PDD, cash-in-lieu fee required for disturbed trees is $1,410,000.
With 863 lots consisting of two 3-inch caliper size trees at $685 per
tree, the total lot credit is $1,182,310. With 237 4-inch caliper size
trees located along the boulevards and amenity center at $1,000 per
tree for a total credit of $237,000. The combined total credit is
$1,419,310 which exceeds the minimum total cost per acre of
disturbance.

77

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 12 of 12 

 

 
 

Subdivision, 28.02, 
Exhibit A 

This section shall also include, depending on what type of plat is being filed, how public or 
private improvements will meet City standards, including water quality, drainage, 
stormwater, and fire  (if applicable).  

 

 

 

 

 

 
Zoning, Article 30.02, 
Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public and private improvements are in conformance with the
approved PDD. Additionally, a Contributing Zone Plan application
is in review with TCEQ for proposed development.

Proposed use is in conformance with the approved PDD.

78

Item 5.



Received on/by: 

Project Number:  _____-_____ 
Only filled out by staff 

BILLING CONTACT FORM 

Project Name:   

Project Address:   

Project Applicant Name:  

Billing Contact Information 

Name: 

Mailing Address: 

Email:  Phone Number:  

Type of Project/Application (check all that apply): 

� Alternative Standard � Special Exception 
� Certificate of Appropriateness � Street Closure Permit 
� Conditional Use Permit � Subdivision 
� Development Agreement � Waiver 
� Exterior Design � Wastewater Service 
� Landscape Plan � Variance 
� Lighting Plan � Zoning 
� Site Development Permit � Other 

Applicants are required to pay all associated costs associated with a project’s application for a 
permit, plan, certificate, special exception, waiver, variance, alternative standard, or agreement, 
regardless of City approval. Associated costs may include, but are not limited to, public notices 
and outside professional services provided to the City by engineers, attorneys, surveyors, 
inspectors, landscape consultants, lighting consultants, architects, historic preservation 
consultants, and others, as required. Associated costs will be billed at cost plus 20% to cover 
the City’s additional administrative costs. Please see the online Master Fee Schedule for more 
details. By signing below, I am acknowledging that the above listed party is financially 
accountable for the payment and responsibility of these fees. 

Signature of Applicant Date 

X

Wild Ridge Phase 1

E US 290, Dripping Springs, TX 78620

Doucet & Associates, Inc.

Richard Pham, P.E.

7401 B Highway 71 West, Suite 160

Austin, TX 78735
rpham@doucetengineers.com 512-806-0307

Richard Pham
Digitally signed by Richard Pham
DN: CN=Richard Pham, OU=Users-Austin Corp, DC=int, 
DC=doucetandassociates, DC=com
Date: 2023.02.16 16:20:40-06'00'

2/16/2023
79

Item 5.



      

 
     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: March 24, 2023 
 

   

      

Richard Pham 
Doucet 
 

 

   

      

Permit Number: SUB2023-0006 
Project Name: Wild Ridge Phase 1 Final Plat 
Project Address: E US 290, Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

 

  

      

      

City Planner Comments 
The following comments have been provided by Tory Carpenter. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Tory Carpenter by email tcarpenter@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 
 

1. Show updated city limits on vicinity map [4.7a] 
 

2. Please clarify the reason for the "Block 9 Lot 1 Amenity Center label north of Shadow Ridge Pkwy. 
This area is shown as being within the ROW boundary on the plat.  

 
 

3. Provide Hays County street name approval. This may require renaming "Shadow Ridge Parkway to 
Mira Vista Drive since the former name is already established with the Headwaters subdivision [4.7d] 
 

Engineer/Public Works Comments 
The following comments have been provided by Chad Gilpin. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Chad Gilpin by email cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 
 

4. Delete note 26 as it refers to a different development. 
 

5. Update notes 27 and 28.  Note 27 should be “Local Streets” and Note 28 should be “Arterial 
Streets”. 
 

6. Provide notes indicating all Streets and ROW is dedicated to the City of Dripping Springs. 
 

7. Provide a roadway classification summary table for all streets within the development like what was 
provided on the Preliminary Plat. 
 

 
8. Coordinate with the Gateway Village to show ROW for a Cul-de-Sac at the intersection of the 

East/West connector through the Oryx property. 
80

Item 5.

mailto:tcarpenter@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com


3/24/2023 11:30:07 AM 
Wild Ridge Phase 1 Final Plat 
SUB2023-0006 
Page 2 

 

 

  

 
 

9. Block 3, Lot 19 – Minimum WW Utility easement shall be 20ft. [Subdivision Ordinance 12.2.1]. 
 

 
10. Lot 9 Block 1 Amenity Center should be separated from ROW. 

 
 

11. Construction Plans show cross culverts and storm system throughout that extend outside ROW and 
platted Ph 1 boundary.  These need to be in ROW or drainage easements. 
 

 
12. Construction Plans show Ph 1 WW that extends outside Platted Ph 1 Boundary.  These need to be in 

ROW or easement. 
 

 
13. Construction Plans show Ph 1 WL that extends outside platted Ph 1 Boundary.  These need to be in 

ROW of easement. 
 

 
14. The Final Plat cannot be approved until either; 

 
a. Construction of Public Infrastructure is complete and accepted by the Jurisdiction that will own it; 
OR 
b. Fiscal Surety is posted and approved by the Jurisdiction that will own the Public Infrastructure. 
 

 

      

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
81

Item 5.



3/24/2023 11:30:07 AM 
Wild Ridge Phase 1 Final Plat 
SUB2023-0006 
Page 3 

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

82

Item 5.



83

Item 5.



84

Item 5.



85

Item 5.



86

Item 5.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 
  

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
March 28, 2023 

Project No:  SUB2023-0004 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP – Planning Director 

Item Details 

Project Name: Driftwood Lot 2 Replat 

Property Location: 10450 FM 967 

Legal Description: Driftwood Phase 1 Lot 2 

Applicant: Chris Eartham, Driftwood 25 ACA LP 

Property Owner: Driftwood Driftwood 25 ACA LP 

Staff recommendation: Denial of the Replat based on outstanding comments 

87

Item 6.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The purpose of this replat is to subdivide one existing platted lot into 5 residential lots and 2 commercial lots. 

Access and Transportation 

Primary access to the subdivision will be through Ranch Road 967.  

Site Information 

Location: Driftwood Golf Club at Ranch road 967 

Zoning Designation: ETJ / Driftwood Development Agreement 

 

Property History 

The driftwood development agreement was approved in 2015 and the subject plat was recorded in 2019.  

Recommendation 

Denial to address comments.  

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Subdivision Application 

Exhibit 2 – Replat 

Exhibit 3 – Outstanding Comments Letter 

 

Recommended Action Disapproval of the Plat with the outstanding comments. 

Alternatives/Options N/A 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments No comments have been received at the time of the report.  

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

88

Item 6.



      

 
     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: March 24, 2023 
 

   

      

Ken Martin 
 

 

   

      

Permit Number: SUB2023-0004 
Project Name: Re-subdivision of Lot 2, Driftwood 967 Phase 
One 
Project Address: FM 967 at FM 1826, Buda, TX 78610 

 

  

      

      

City Planner Comments 
The following comments have been provided by Tory Carpenter. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Tory Carpenter by email tcarpenter@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

  1. Remove "administrative" from the "City of Dripping Springs Administrative Plat Approval." 

  2. Remove Michelle Fischer's Signature and replat with a signature for the Planning & Zoning Commission Chair 
and a place for the city secretary to attest and the approval date of the Planning & Zoning Commission [4.7.r.4] 

  3. Provide the Hays County 1445 approval. [4.8.3] 

  4. Provide a separate exhibit showing how Mossback Drive will connect to Driftwood Ranch Drive.  

Engineer/Public Works Comments 
The following comments have been provided by Chad Gilpin. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Chad Gilpin by email cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

  Engineering approves with the following condition: 

  5. Label widths of the WQBZ. It is shown as 200 ft WQBZ on Preliminary Plat. [WQO 22.05.017]. 
 

      

      

 
 
 
 
 

 
89

Item 6.



90

Item 6.



91

Item 6.



92

Item 6.



93

Item 6.



94

Item 6.



95

Item 6.



96

Item 6.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



97

Item 6.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



98

Item 6.



99

Item 6.



100

Item 6.



101

Item 6.



102

Item 6.



103

Item 6.



104

Item 6.



105

Item 6.



City Council  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

 

 

Planning & Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
March 28, 2023 

Project No:  CUP2023-0001 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP – Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: WHIM Warehouse/Office 

Property Location: 27950 Ranch Road 12 

Legal Description: Grand Prairie Subdivision Lot 1 

Applicant: Jon Thompson 

Property Owner: Lucy Hanks Properties 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a warehouse/office 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approval with the following conditions: 

1. Locations of buildings and parking areas shall generally be consistent with the site 

plan provided with this request. 

2. Delivery and pickups shall only be allowed between the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.  

106

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview 

The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit (CUP) to allow the use of warehouse/office on a property zoned 

commercial services. The plan consists of 4 buildings to be used as warehouse, offices, and a show room for WHIM 

hospitality. 

The property currently houses a tent being used for the company’s storage needs. This tent was approved by a CUP which 

is set to expire on July 14, 2024.  

 

 

 

 

Surrounding Properties 

 
 

The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the table 

below: 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North Commercial Services (CS) Whim Warehouse 

Not Shown 
East Single-Family SF-4 Single Family 

South PDD Texas Heritage Village 

West Commercial Services (CS) Commercial 

 

Direction Setback Code requirement 

Front Ten Feet (25’) 

Rear Ten Feet (25’) 

Side  Five feet (15’) 

107

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
 

 

 

Approval Criteria for Conditional Use Permit Review (3.17.6-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is 

consistent with the policies embodied in the 

Comprehensive Plan; 

The following comprehensive goals support this request: 

 

1. Support expansion of business and professional services 

and  

 

2. Support tourist / Wedding related businesses 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the general 

purpose and intent of the applicable zoning district 

regulations; 

The zoning district is Commercial Services (CS), which 

permits commercial and retail uses. Warehouse/office is 

permitted in the CS zoning district with the approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 

 

3. The proposed use meets all supplemental standards 

specifically applicable to the use, as established in 

the Development Standards, Section 5; 

The applicant will need to meet all development standards.  

 

4. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves 

the character and integrity of adjacent development 

and neighborhoods, and (as required by the 

particular circumstances) includes improvements or 

modifications (either on-site or within the public 

rights-of-way) to mitigate development-related 

adverse impacts, including but not limited to the 

following: 

While the property is adjacent to nearby residences, all 

buildings are at least 85’ from the nearest residential 

property line.  

a. Adequate ingress and egress to 

property and proposed structures 

thereon with particular reference to 

vehicular and pedestrian safety and 

convenience, and access in case of fire; 

Sidewalks are required along streets and adequate 

vehicular ingress and egress are shown on the plans.     

b. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, 

and pavement type; 

The applicant is meeting all parking requirements.  

 

c. Refuse and service areas; 

 

Dumper locations are sown on the plans.   

d. Utilities with reference to location, 

availability, and compatibility; 

Utility availability is adequate.  

e. Screening and buffering, features to 

minimize visual impacts, and/or 

setbacks from adjacent uses; 

The existing landscaped buffer will remain between this 

property and nearby residences.  

f. Control of signs, if any; 

 

Signage will be done with a separate permit and will need 

to comply with the current sign ordinance in effect. Any 

variances will require approval.  

g. Control of exterior lighting with 

reference to glare, traffic safety, 

The owner shall comply with the lighting ordinance.  

108

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

economic effect, and compatibility and 

harmony with properties in the district; 

h. Required yards and open space; 

 

Not applicable.  

i. Height and bulk of structures; 

 

The buildings must meet the architectural standards.  

j. Hours of operation; 

 

Staff is recommending only allowing deliveries and 

pickups between the hours of 7:00 am and 7:00 pm.  

 

k. Exterior construction material, 

building design, and building facade 

treatment; 

The buildings must meet the architectural standards.  

l. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control 

devices or mechanisms, and access 

restrictions to control traffic flow or 

divert traffic as may be needed to 

reduce or eliminate development-

generated traffic on neighborhood 

streets; and 

Not applicable.   

m. Provision for pedestrian 

access/amenities/areas; 

Sidewalks are required along all streets.  

5. The proposed use is not materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare, 

or results in material damage or prejudice to other 

property in the vicinity; and, 

 

Staff finds that the proposed office/warehouse use will not 

be detrimental or damaging to the surrounding properties, 

these properties being similarly commercially zoned.  

6. Noise; Staff is recommending conditions to limit hours of 

deliveries to limit disruption to nearby residences. 

 

7. Odors; and No concerns noted. 

 

8. Dust. No concerns noted. 

 

 

P&Z Action 

The below excerpt of the Code are the procedures that P&Z should take for CUPS.   

Chapter 30 Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance Sec 3.17.5 Procedures for CUPs:  

(a) P&Z Recommendation: Following the public hearing, the P&Z shall recommend approval, approval subject 

to modification, or denial of the proposal to the City Council. If the appropriateness of the use cannot be 

assured at the location, the P&Z shall recommend denial of the application as being incompatible with existing 

uses or with other uses permitted by right in the district. 

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of the 

Conditional Use Permit request. At the time of this report, staff has not received any public comments for this request.   

Meetings Schedule 

March 28, 2023 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

April 4, 2023 - City Council Meeting 
109

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 - Conditional Use Permit Application 

Attachment 2 – Site Plan 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the request with the following conditions: 

1. Locations of buildings and parking areas shall generally be consistent with the site 

plan provided with this request. 

2. Delivery and pickups shall only be allowed between the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit; recommend approval of the 

Conditional Use Permit with no or alternate conditions. 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time, but the City would receive additional sales tax revenue. 

Public Comments: Staff has not received any public comments at this time.  

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan 
Element: 

Support the expansion of business and professional services 

Support Tourism related businesses 

 

110

Item 7.



111

Item 7.



112

Item 7.



113

Item 7.



114

Item 7.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



BLDG 2

BLDG 1

BLDG 3

BLDG 4

115

Item 7.



116

Item 7.



117

Item 7.



118

Item 7.



119

Item 7.



120

Item 7.



121

Item 7.



122

Item 7.



123

Item 7.



124

Item 7.



125

Item 7.



 

 

HHerron Design Studio 
a   r   c   h   i   t   e   c   t   u   r   e 

101 Hays Street, Suite 409  Dripping Springs, TX 78620  512.858.9889 
 

Materials List for A Headquarters Complex for WHIM Hospitality  
 

Roofing Material 
Standing seam “Smokey Pewter” colored metal panels 

 
 

Siding, Trim Gutters & Downspouts Material 
PBU “Smokey Pewter” colored metal panels 
“Smokey Pewter” trim, gutters & downspouts 

 
 

Stone Veneer Material 
“Native Limestone” tans, greys and other earth tones 

 

 
 

Windows and Storefront Material 
“black” colored aluminum-framed insulated low E glazed units 

 

126

Item 7.



Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Project Name: Gateway Village  

Property Location: US 290 across from Drifting Wind 

Legal Description: 97.44 acres out of the Philip A Smith, William Walker, Edward Brown, 

and Davis Jr suveys 

Applicant: John Doucet, Doucet & Associates 

Property Owner: Cannon Family Ranch Partnership, LLC 

Request:  PDD 

 

  

Planning & Zoning 

Commission meeting: March 28, 2023 

Project No:  PDD2021-0004 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP, Planning Director 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the PDD 

Item Details 

127

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

PDD2021-0004 

 
Background 

The applicant is requesting the creation of a Planned Development District for a commercial and single 

family development. The plan consists of 307 single family residences with lot widths ranging from 50’ to 

60’. The plan also includes 7.2 acres of commercial land and 22.36 acres of open space. The applicant is 

also requesting expansion for Dripping Springs MUD #1 to the site which was originally established for 

the Village Grove development. The City will provide wastewater to the development.  

 

Surrounding Developments 

The property is one of three developments in various stages of entitlement within the existing property 

known as Cannon Ranch. The site is south of the Cynosure / Wild Ridge development and west of Blue 

Blazes.  

 

 

 

  

128

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

PDD2021-0004 

 
Comprehensive Plan 

 
The current comprehensive plan identifies this area as “Mixed Use” on the future land use map. The 

plan specifically states that this area is suitable for “mixed retail, office, and residential uses, also 

appropriate for multifamily residential.”  

 

Transportation 

 

The property will take its primary access via the proposed Wild Ridge Blvd which will be extended by 

the Wild Ridge developer. The latest roadway agreement indicates that this development will be 

responsible for 12% of the cost of Wild Ridge Blvd. The plan also includes residential road connections 

to the approved Wild Ridge / Cynosure development and a roundabout at the entrance of the 

commercial development.  

 

The Transportation Master Plan shows an extension of Drifting Wind through the property as a 

collector road. However, after reviewing the traffic impact analysis, staff found that any minimal benefit 

did not outweigh the concerns of an increase in cut and fill and traffic conflicts on US 290 with the 

extension of Drifting Wind. 

 

The applicant is requesting a 54 foot right-of-way for the residential roads as opposed to our standard 

65 foot cross section. At the time of this report, this request is scheduled for consideration at the March 

27 Transportation Committee agenda. Staff is supportive of this request.  

 

 

 

 

 

129

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

PDD2021-0004 

 
Previous Meetings 

3/09/22 – DAWG met with applicant and provided comments 

2/06/23 – Parks & Recreation Commission approved the parks plan. 

2/24/23 – DAWG met with applicant to discuss latest draft of the plan 

2/27/23 – The Transportation Commission reviewed the proposed traffic improvements 

2/28/23 – The Transportation Commission considered the proposed road cross section 

Concept Plan 

 

130

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

PDD2021-0004 

 
 

Approval Criteria for Zoning Amendment (Chapter 30 Zoning, Exhibit A, Sec 2.28.1 and 2.28.2) 

 

2.28.2 The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council shall consider the following factors: 

 

Factors Staff Comments 

1. whether the proposed change will be 

appropriate in the immediate area 

concerned; 

This zoning change is consistent with recent 

development in the area.  

2. their relationship to the general area and 

the City as a whole; 

This zoning change would allow for 

additional single-family residences.   

3. whether the proposed change is in accord 

with any existing or proposed plans for 

providing public schools, streets, water 

supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities 

to the area; 

The property is not within any existing or 

proposed City Plans.  

4. the amount of undeveloped land currently 

classified for similar development in the 

vicinity and elsewhere in the City, and any 

special circumstances which may make a 

substantial part of such undeveloped land 

unavailable for development; 

This request would not make other land 

unavailable for development.   

5. the recent rate at which land is being 

developed in the same zoning 

classification, particularly in the vicinity 

of the proposed change; 

Land with the same zoning classification has 

been developing rapidly.  

6. how other areas designated for similar 

development will be, or are unlikely to be, 

affected if the proposed amendment is 

approved; 

No areas designated for similar development 

will be affected by this proposed amendment.  

7. whether the proposed change treats the 

subject parcel of land in a manner which is 

significantly different from decisions 

made involving other, similarly situated 

parcels; and 

Approval of this zoning amendment would 

not be significantly different from decisions 

made involving other similar parcels.  

8. any other factors which will substantially 

affect the public health, safety, morals, or 

general welfare. 

The rezoning does not negatively affect the 

public health, safety, morals, or general 

welfare.  

 

  

131

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

PDD2021-0004 

 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the PDD. 

 

Planning and Zoning action: 

2.34.1     The P&Z shall hold a public hearing on a zoning an amendment to the Zoning 

Ordinance. After all public input has been received and the public hearing closed, the P&Z shall 

make its recommendations on the proposed zoning request and concept plan, if submitted, stating 

its findings, its overall evaluation of the request, and its assessment regarding how the request 

relates to the City's Comprehensive Plan. The P&Z may, on its own motion or at the applicant's 

request, defer its decision recommendations until it has had an opportunity to consider other 

information or proposed modifications to the request which may have a direct bearing thereon. If 

the P&Z elects to postpone or defer its hearing on the request, such action shall specifically state 

the time period of the postponement by citing the meeting date whereon the request will reappear 

on the P&Z's agenda. 

 

2.34.2     When the P&Z is ready to act upon the zoning request, it may recommend: 

 

(a)     approval of the request as it was submitted by the applicant; 

 

(b)     approval of the request subject to certain conditions as in the case of a Planned 

Development District (PDD) or a Conditional Use Permit (CUP); or 

 

(c)     disapproval of the request. 

 

2.34.3     The P&Z's recommendation will be automatically forwarded to the City Council for a 

second public hearing thereon. 

Public Notification 

Staff provided legal notice advertising the public hearing in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs 

posted on the-site, notice placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of 

the site notified of the zoning map amendment. To date, no letters for or against the request have been 

received.  

 

132

Item 8.



 

 

 

  March 10, 2023 Draft   

 

 

 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT No. __: 

Gateway Village 
 

Planned Development District Ordinance 

Approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission on: 

_______, 2023 

Approved by the City Council on: 

_______, 2023 

 

 
  

133

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 2 of 15 

 

THIS PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ORDINANCE (“Ordinance”) is enacted pursuant to City of Dripping Springs Code 

of Ordinances, Article 30.3. 

 

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of certain real property consisting of approximately 97.44 acres located within the City Limits of 

the City of Dripping Springs (“City”), in Hays County, Texas, commonly known as “Gateway Village” and as more 

particularly identified and described in Exhibit A (the “Property”) to Attachment “A”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Property will be subdivided and developed by Owner, its affiliates or their successors and assigns, for construction 

and use in general accordance with the PD Master Plan shown as Exhibit B to Attachment “A”; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the Owner, its affiliates or their successors and assigns intends to develop a master-planned community that will include 

a mix of land uses, together with parkland and roadway connections described herein; 

 

WHEREAS, the Owner has submitted an application to the City to rezone the Property to Planned Development District (“PDD”), 

designating it “PDD – __”; and  

 

WHEREAS, after public notice, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing and recommended approval on 

_________________, 2023; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the City’s Planned Development Districts Ordinance, Article 30.03 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the 

“PD Ordinance”), the Owner has submitted a PD Master Plan that conceptually describes the Project, which is attached 

to this Ordinance as Exhibit B to Attachment “A”; and 

 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance, PD Master Plan, and the Code of Ordinances shall be read in harmony, will be applicable to the Property, 

and will guide development of the Property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed this proposed Ordinance, the PD Master Plan, and the Annexation and MUD Consent 

Agreement for Gateway Village and has determined that it promotes the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens 

of Dripping Springs; complies with the intent of the City of Dripping Springs Comprehensive Plan; and is necessary in 

light of changes in the neighborhood; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this proposed Ordinance ensures the compatibility of land uses, and to allow for the adjustment 

of changing demands to meet the current needs of the community by meeting one or more of the following purposes 

under Code §30.03.004:  provides for a superior design of lots or buildings; provides for increased recreation and/or open 

space opportunities for public use; provides amenities or features that would be of special benefit to the property users 

or community; protects or preserves natural amenities and environmental assets such as trees, creeks, ponds, floodplains, 

slopes, hills, viewscapes, and wildlife habitats; protects or preserves existing historical buildings, structures, features or 

places; provides an appropriate balance between the intensity of development and the ability to provide adequate 

supporting public facilities and services; and meets or exceeds the present standards of this article; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized to adopt this Ordinance in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapters 51 

and 211; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the Ordinance has been subject to public notices and public hearings and has been reviewed and approved by the City’s 

Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Dripping Springs:  

 

1. FINDINGS OF FACT 

  

The City Council finds that the facts and matters in the foregoing recitals are true and correct; and, are hereby incorporated into this 

Ordinance by reference as findings of fact as if expressly set forth herein. 

 

2. ENACTMENT 

 

A. Zoning District Created. PDD – __ is hereby established consistent with Attachment “A,” which is attached hereto and 

incorporated into this Ordinance for all intents and purposes.   Code of Ordinances Chapter 30, Exhibit A [Zoning Ordinance], § 3.1 

[Zoning Districts] is hereby amended to add the zoning district identified as PDD – __. 

 

B. Zoning Map Amended. The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to demarcate the boundaries of PDD – __ 

consistently with the boundaries of the Property delineated in the Property Legal Description, Exhibit A to Attachment “A”. 

 

 

C. PD Master Plan Approved. The PD Master Plan attached as Exhibit B to Attachment “A” is hereby approved.  The PD Master 

Plan, together with Attachment “A”, constitutes the zoning regulations for the Project. All construction, land use and development 

of the Property must substantially conform to the terms and conditions set forth in the PD Master Plan, this Ordinance, Attachment 

“A” and the exhibits.  The PD Master Plan is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general vision and design concepts.  The 

PD Master Plan is to serve as the conceptual basis for the site plan(s) subsequently submitted to the City seeking site development 

permit approval.  If this Ordinance and the PD Master Plan conflict, this Ordinance controls.  This approval shall not be interpreted 

as approval of a variance, utility sources, or other site plan or plat requirements without specific reference in the ordinance or variance 

chart, or in future approvals. 

 

 

D. Administrative Approval of Minor Modifications.  In order to provide flexibility with respect to certain details of the development 

of the Project, the City Administrator is authorized to approve minor modifications.  Minor modifications do not require consent or 

action of the Planning & Zoning Commission or City Council.  Examples of minor modifications include the location of use 

classifications; slight adjustments to the internal street and drive alignments; building envelopes; number of buildings; orientation 

134

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 3 of 15 

 

of buildings; and adjustments that do not result in overall increases to traffic, density, or impervious cover.  The City Administrator 

may approve minor modifications in writing following consultation with the City Engineer.  Any appeal of the City Administrator’s 

determination regarding whether or not a change is a minor modification may be appealed by any aggrieved party to the Board of 

Adjustment.  

 

E. Code of Ordinances.  The Code of Ordinances as of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be applicable to the Project, except 

as specifically provided for by this Ordinance, Attachment “A”, or the PD Master Plan.  

 

 

F. Resolution of Conflicts. The documents governing the PDD should be read in harmony to the extent possible.  If a conflict arises 

between the charts included in the exhibits and the illustrations contained in the exhibits, the charts shall control. If a conflict arises 

between the terms of this Ordinance and the exhibits, the terms of this Ordinance shall control. 

 

 

G. Attachments and Exhibits Listed. The following attachment and exhibits thereto are incorporated into this Ordinance in their 

entirety, as though set forth fully in the text of this Ordinance: 

 

 

Attachment “A” – Planned Development District No. and Zoning Map 

 

Exhibit A  Property Legal Description 

Exhibit B  PD Concept/Master/Lotting Plan 

Exhibit C  Parks, Trails and Open Space Plan 

Exhibit D  PD Code Modifications Chart  

Exhibit E  PD Phasing Plan 

Exhibit F  PD Uses Chart 

Exhibit G   Street Standards 

Exhibit H  Water Quality Buffer Zones 

Exhibit I  Highway 290 Landscape Buffer 

 

 

3. REPEALER 

 

All ordinances, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 

of such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated herein.  

 

 

 

4. SEVERABILITY 

 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be deemed invalid, unconstitutional, or 

unenforceable by a court of law or administrative agency with jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect 

any other valid portion of this Ordinance. 

5. PENALTY  

 

Any person, firm, association or persons, company, corporations or their agents or employees violating or failing to comply with any of 

the provisions of this Ordinance may be subject to a fine pursuant to Section 54.001 of the Texas Local Government Code, upon 

conviction of not more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00). The foregoing fine may be cumulative of other remedies provided by 

State law, and the power on injunction as provided by Texas Local Government Code 54.012 and as may be amended, may be exercised 

in enforcing this Ordinance whether or not there has been a complaint filed. 

 

6. CODIFICATION 

 

The City Secretary is hereby directed to record and publish the attached rules, regulations and policies in the City’s Code of Ordinances 

as authorized by Section 52.001 of the Texas Local Government Code.  

 

7. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and that public 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 

551.  Notice was also provided as required by Chapters 52 and 211 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

 

8. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon approval by the City Council and publication as required by law. 

  

135

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 4 of 15 

 

 

PASSED & APPROVED this, the   day of                             , 2023 by a vote of      (ayes) to              (nays) to        

(abstentions) of the City Council of Dripping Springs. 

 

 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

 

 

by: ________________________ 

Bill Foulds, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

  

136

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 5 of 15 

 

Attachment “A” 

 

City of Dripping Springs 

 

CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 

ARTICLE 30.03: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS 

 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. __:  

 

ARTICLE I.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1.1. Popular Name.  This Chapter shall be commonly cited as the “PDD – __ Ordinance”, also referred to as “this Ordinance” herein. 

 

1.2. Scope.  This Ordinance applies to the Property. 

 

 

1.3. PD Master Plan. The PD Master Plan has been approved by the City and shall guide permitting, development and use of the 

Property.  

 

 

1.4. Definitions. Words and terms used herein shall have their usual meaning except as they may be specifically defined herein, or, 

if capitalized and not defined herein, as defined in the Code (hereinafter defined):  

 

City: The City of Dripping Springs, an incorporated Type A, general-law municipality located in Hays County, Texas. 

 

City Administrator or Administrator: The chief administrative officer of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas.  The term also 

includes the Deputy City Administrator and City Administrator’s designee. 

 

City Council: The governing body of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

City Engineer: The person or firm designated by the City Council as the engineer for the City of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

Code, City’s Code of Ordinances or City of Dripping Springs Code of Ordinances: The entirety of the City’s ordinances, 

regulations and official policies in effect as of ___________, 2023 except as modified by the Project Approvals and variances 

granted under the Development Agreement and this Ordinance. This term does not include Zoning or Building Codes, Sign 

Ordinance, the Water Quality Protection Ordinance or regulations mandated by state law, or that are necessary to prevent 

imminent harm to human safety or property, which may be modified and made applicable to the Project even after the Effective 

Date. 

 

Dripping Springs Technical Criteria: The criteria adopted in Article 28.07 of the City of Dripping Springs Code of Ordinances 

that includes technical criteria standard specifications and adopted in Ordinance 2021-35 and as modified. 

 

Effective Date: The Effective Date of this Ordinance shall be the date of approval by the City Council and publication as required 

by law. 

 

Homeowners Association: A community group that is organized with respect to the Property in which individual owners of lots 

share common interests and responsibilities for costs and upkeep of common space or facilities. The group may take the form of 

a Home Owners Association or Property Owners Association.  

 

Impervious Cover: Buildings, parking areas, roads, and other impermeable man-made improvements covering the natural 

land surface that prevent infiltration as determined by City Engineer. For purposes of compliance with this document, the term 

expressly excludes storage tanks for rainwater collection systems.  

 

Impervious Cover Percentage: The percentage calculated by dividing the total area of impervious cover on the lot by the total 

area of the lot, excluding any public improvements for rights of way and sidewalks.  

 

Landscaping Ordinance: Article 28.06, Landscaping and Tree Preservation, of Chapter 28, Subdivisions and Site Development 

of the City of Dripping Springs Code of Ordinances. 

 

Outdoor Lighting Ordinance:  Article 24.06, Outdoor Lighting, of Chapter 24 of the City of Dripping Springs Code of 

Ordinances. 

 

Owner:  North DSP, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, and its successors and assigns as subsequent owners of any 

portion of the Property.  

 

Project: A land use and development endeavor proposed to be performed on the Property, as provided by this Ordinance and 

generally depicted on the PD Master Plan on Exhibit B.   

 

Project Approvals:  The approvals, waivers and exceptions to the Applicable Rules approved by the City with respect to the 

development of the Property, as set forth in Exhibit D.   

 

Property: The land as more particularly described in Exhibit A. 

 

TCEQ: The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, or its successor agency. 

 

TIA: Traffic Impact Analysis, as specified in Chapter 28, Article 28.02: Exhibit A-Subdivision Ordinance, Section 11.11 of the 

Dripping Springs Code of Ordinances. 

137

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 6 of 15 

 

 

TxDOT: The Texas Department of Transportation or its successor agency. 

 

Water Quality Protection Ordinance:  Article 22.05 of Chapter 22, General Regulations of the Code.  

 

ARTICLE II. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

2.1. General Regulations.  Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance and the PD Master Plan, the Property shall be governed 

by the site regulations and development standards contained in the Code of Ordinances. 

 

2.2. Phasing.  The Property may be developed in phases.  The Project is intended to be developed in phases as shown on Exhibit E.  

Owner may change the phasing of development from time to time in response to market conditions or other factors.  Phases may 

be developed concurrently.  Construction Plans or site plans shall be submitted to the City for approval with each phase. Each 

plat filed with the City shall contain parkland required for that phase and parkland for the entire Land shall be submitted by 

separate exhibit with each plat application including the amount associated with prior platted areas and the amount associated 

with the area subject to such plat. The chart shall also show the average lot size computation for the Land as a whole and resulting 

from the plat and prior platted areas. In addition, an impervious cover and LUE tracking chart shall be submitted as an exhibit 

with each plat filed indicating the amount of impervious cover proposed for the entire Land, the amount associated with prior 

platted areas and the amount associated with the area subject to such plat. 

 

 

2.3. Permitted Uses. 

 

 

2.3.1. Base Zoning:  The base zoning district for the residential portion of the Property shall be SF-3, which shall be the basis 

for all zoning specifications not addressed in this Ordinance or the PD Master Plan.  The Commercial portion of the 

Property shall be GR. 

 

2.3.2. Allowed Uses: Those uses listed in the PD Uses Chart attached as Exhibit F are hereby permitted by right within the 

Project.    

 

 

2.4. Commercial Design Specifications. 

 

2.4.1 Design Standards.  The Commercial portion of the Property may be developed consistent with applicable Zoning 

Regulations and Article 24.03 Exterior Design and Architectural Standards  established in the Code. 

 

2.5. Residential Design Specifications. 

  

2.5.1 Impervious Cover. Each residential or commercial lot shall be developed with an Impervious Cover limit compliant 

with respective base zoning district assigned per Section 2.3.1. 

 

2.5.2 Minimum Lot Area.  Six thousand (6,000) square feet. 

 

 

2.5.3 Building Height. Buildings shall not exceed 2 ½ stories or forty (40) feet, whichever is less, measured from the average 

elevation of the finished grade adjacent to the building to the highest point of a flat or multi-level or as defined in Section 

28.05.004 of the 2017 City of Dripping Springs Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

2.5.4 Minimum Lot Width.  Fifty (50) feet measured from the front setback line. 

 

 

2.5.5 Setbacks.  Building setbacks in residential areas shall be as follows: 

 

 

a. Minimum Front Yard:  Building setbacks shall be twenty (20) feet from the street right of way. 

 

b. Minimum Side Yard:  Building setbacks shall be five (5) feet; provided, however corner lots will be set back a 

minimum of ten (10) feet from the street right of way. 

 

 

c. Minimum Rear Yard:  Building setbacks shall be ten (10) feet. 

 

 

d. Minimum Garage Setback: Garage doors shall be set back a minimum of twenty (20) feet from the front street 

right of way or ten (10) feet from the side street right-of-way. Garage doors must also be set back 18 feet from the 

nearest sidewalk.  

 

 

e. Minimum Setback for Accessory Building:  Five (5) feet; no accessory buildings or structures are permitted in 

any front yard. 

 

 

f. Maximum Height of Fence Outside Street Yard:  Six (6) feet measured from average natural grade. All fences 

shall provide a finished face to abutting streets and these fences shall not conflict with sight triangles at street 

intersections or obstruct views from adjacent driveways. Fences shall not extend into the front yard. 

 

138

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 7 of 15 

 

 

2.5.6 Cut & Fill.  Improvements requiring a site development permit will be subject to cut and fill limits as stated in Exhibit 

E, Modification Chart.  

 

2.5.7 Retaining Walls.  Retaining walls shall be required within the Property as a typical part of development of the Property.  

All retaining walls within the Property shall be finished with natural limestone material consistent with the following 

photo images. Retaining walls taller than 8 feet may be required to be terraced so that no vertical segment is taller than 8 

feet.  The terracing requirement for walls over 8 feet will be decided the City Development Review Committee on a case-

by-case basis 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

2.5.8 Parking.   

 

a. Residential Parking:  Development of the Property shall include parking at a minimum of two off-street spaces per 

residence.  On street parking shall be allowed along one (1) side of each internal local street. And such side will be 

the side where there are no fire hydrants; sufficient red paint with “No Parking – Fire Lane” lettering will be placed 

on no parking side curb.  If fire hydrants are on both sides of the street, then parking shall be allowed on only one 

side and sufficient “No Parking – Fire Lane” lettering painted on curb shall extend past either side of the fire hydrant 

in compliance with fire code. 

 

b. Commercial Parking:  Parking shall be provided for the commercial areas; the number of parking spaces within the 

Commercial Area shall be determined in accordance with City ordinances and the proposed use of the commercial 

spaces. The total number of parking stalls for the commercial areas may be determined by a shared use parking study 

provided by Owner and accepted by City. 

 

 

c. Amenity Center Parking:  Parking shall be provided for recreational sites that provide a community pool and other 

recreational facilities. The Amenity Center site shall include, but not be limited to, the following: A private access 

resort-style pool, pool restroom building, pavilion(s) and shade structure(s), a multi-age and ADA compliant 

playground facility, and an open lawn for passive recreation. The quantity of parking required will be one (1) parking 

space per 300 square feet of pool surface area. 

 

 

d. Undeveloped Parkland Parking:  If it is determined by City staff that the dedication of the public parks requires 

parking to be provided for future recreational uses built by the City, the quantity of spaces shall be determined under 

139

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 8 of 15 

 

Section 5.6.2 (12) Commercial amusement (outdoor) of the City’s Zoning Ordinances. The required parking spaces 

shall be met by on-street parallel parking where specifically approved by the City’s development review committee 

or an off-road parking lot constructed by the owner.   

 

 

2.5.9 Design of Residences. 

 

a. Front Elevations and Materials:  The requirements for architectural and exterior design compliance are conditions 

of approval of the code modifications in Exhibit D.  As such, architectural and exterior design of residences within 

Project shall meet requirements set out below. All residences shall consist of 100% masonry on all front facing and 

street facing elevations. Native Stone and/or Brick masonry, plus doors and window openings shall comprise a 

minimum of 75% of these elevations, with a preference for a predominance of Native Stone Masonry.  Stucco, and 

cementitious siding elements shall be deemed appropriate materials to satisfy the remaining 25% front and street 

facing masonry elevation requirement. A variety of masonry material is encouraged in the design of each residence. 

 

b. Elevations:  The front elevation of all homes shall contain wall plane articulation. No elevation shall be single wall 

plan across the entire width of the front elevation. Each front elevation shall contain a minimum of two of the 

following elements, to be identified on the architectural plans submitted for building permit: 

 

1. A minimum of two wall planes on the front elevation, offset a minimum of 18 inches; 

 

2. Covered front porches or patio with a minimum size of 60 square feet; 

 

3. A side-entry or swing-in garage entry (for garage doors that do not face the front street); 

 

4. A garage door recessed from the primary front facade a minimum of four feet (for garage doors that face 

the street); 

 

5. Shed roof or trellis (at least 18’’ deep) above garage door for additional architectural detail; 

 

6. A combination of at least two roof types (e.g. hip and gable) or two different roof planes of varying height 

and/or direction; 

 

7. Two or more masonry finishes to compliment the architectural style of the home; and 

 

8.  The addition of one or more dormers on the front elevation to compliment the architectural style of the 

home. 

 

c. Floorplans: Floorplans will be available in single and two-story housing plans.  A minimum of six (6) floorplans 

will be available, offering a variation of front elevations so that there is no discernable repetition in any street scape. 

Articulation on the front  face should be used to ensure a nonrepetitive  street scene.   Where  building  pads  are 

interrupted by a street or open space lot of at  least 50 feet in width, a plan may repeat. A plan can be repeated every 

third building pad (Example:  Plan A 1, Plan B 1,  Plan  A 1,  Plan B 2),  although elevations shall be different on  

the two houses. 

 

d. Roofs and Overhead Structures:  On buildings with pitched roofs, the minimum main roof pitch is 5:12.  Lower 

roof pitches are acceptable on porch elements, awnings or architectural feature elements. 

 

 

e. Design Review and Compliance.  The City shall retain the right to review all building permits for consistency with 

the requirements of this section.  Upon review, City Staff may approve or deny individual building permits based on 

compliance determinations with the provisions of this Section, and consistency with this Ordinance.  The Applicant 

may appeal City Staff’s determinations(s) to the Board of Adjustments for a final decision(s).  Buildings with issued 

permits shall be deemed acceptable and approved for the purposes of this Ordinance. 

 

 

2.5.10 Density of Development.  With respect to the density of the Project, Owner will have the right to develop the Residential 

Land at a density not to exceed 3.4 dwelling units per acre.  

 

2.5.11 Parkland.  The Project is required to have 13.35 acres of Parkland. The Project will include approximately 13.73 net 

acres that will be dedicated for Parkland, the area being shown more fully shown on Exhibit C attached hereto and 

incorporated herein for all purposes (the “Parkland”).  This dedication of the Parkland shall fulfill all parkland dedication 

requirements of the Project to the City, including, but not limited to the requirements of the Parkland Dedication 

Ordinance under the City’s Code of Ordinances and any applicable requirements within the Subdivision Ordinance.  

Owner has prepared a Master Parks and Open Space Plan which has been approved by City.  The Owner will pay the 

Parkland Development Fee per City’s Code of Ordinances.  The Parkland Development Fee will be paid based on the 

number of dwelling units as required by City Code.   

 

 

2.5.12 Highway 290 Landscape Buffer. The Project boundary along Highway 290 consists of steep topographic conditions 

that limit accessibility and visibility to the Project from the roadway.  A minimum fifty (50) feet landscape buffer shall 

be provided along the residential frontage of Highway 290.  The Owner will install landscaping within the landscape 

buffer to screen houses from the highway road surface as shown in Exhibit I.     

 

 

2.6. Parks, Trails and Open Space. Parkland and open space and associated improvements shall be in accordance the standards 

shown on Exhibit C attached hereto.  A Master Parks and Trails Plan shall be submitted to the City for approval prior to approval 

of the first preliminary plat for the Project.  No public trails shall be surfaced with decomposed granite.  The Master Parks and 

140

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 9 of 15 

 

Trails Plan shall address all issues regarding public dedication, public access, maintenance and compliance with the City-wide 

trails plan.  The Owner shall maintain parks and open space within the Project. 

 

2.7. Access.  

 

 

2.7.1 Traffic Impact Analysis.  Owner has provided to the City, and the City has approved a Traffic Impact Analysis. 

 

2.7.2 Roadway Alignments:  The roadway alignments shown on the PD Master Plan are approved by the City.  All roadways 

and driveways not shown on the PD Master Plan shall be subject to the approval of the City Administrator, which approval 

shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

 

 

2.7.3 Offsite Roads:  Construction of the offsite roads and improvements to existing roads are addressed in the Offsite Road 

Agreement, as the same may be amended from time to time 

 

 

2.8. Streets.  All streets designed and constructed on the Property shall be fifty four  (54) feet right-of-way local streets and seventy-

five (75) feet right-of-way collector streets designed consistent with Exhibit G.  

 

2.9. Utilities.  All proposed utilities within the Property will be located underground (other than above-ground appurtenances to such 

underground utilities).  

 

 

2.10. Lighting and Signage.  All illumination for street lighting, signage, security, exterior, landscaping, and decorative facilities for 

the Project shall comply with Article 24.06 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (“Outdoor Lighting Ordinance”), as may be 

amended, from time to time. To the extent any portion of the Agreement conflicts or is inconsistent with the Outdoor Lighting 

Ordinance, the Outdoor Lighting Ordinance shall control.  Owner, homeowners, end users and/or a Property Owner Association 

will be required to operate and maintain the lighting within the Project according to the Applicable Rules. Owner agrees that the 

CCR’s for the Project shall reinforce this provision and be applied to all construction and builders.  A Master Sign Plan shall be 

submitted for City approval prior to the placement of any signs that are not in compliance with either (i) the City’s Sign Ordinance 

or (ii) the variances described in the PD Modifications Chart attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

 

 

2.11. Water  Quality Buffer Zones. The Water Quality Buffer Zones are depicted on Exhibit “H”. 

 

 

2.12. Water Quality. Owner agrees to implement and comply with the City’s Water Quality Protection Ordinance in place on the 

Effective Date except as modified by this Ordinance or by specific variance. 

 

 

2.13. Tree Preservation: Landscaping Ordinance: Article 28.06, Landscaping and Tree Preservation, of Chapter 28, Subdivisions 

and Site Development of the City of Dripping Springs City Code shall apply to the project except as modified by this Agreement. 

Full tree survey to be submitted with each preliminary plat. An aerial tree survey may be used in lieu of a full tree survey if 

approved by the City Administrator. 

 

 

2.13.1 Tree Replacement Plan. 

  

a. Replacement Plan: Subject to 2.13.1. b below, the Tree Replacement Plan shall be in accordance with the City of 

Dripping Springs Code of Ordinances – Chapter 28, Article 28.06 Landscaping and Tree Preservation. 

 

b. Cash-in-Lieu Requirements: The cash-in-lieu fee requirements are determined to be $513,000.  There will be 85.5 

acres of Disturbed Trees (85.5 acres times $6,000 equals $513,000).  Owner shall receive credit against the cash-in-

lieu fees equal to the following: 

 

 

 306  lots with two 2.5-inch caliper size trees at $830.00 per tree for a total lot credit of $507,960, plus 

          20 2.5-inch caliper size trees to be located in the amenity center at $830.00 per tree for a total  

                                   of $16,600.  

 

The combined total credit will be $524,560.  The total cost of tree replacements in the Tree Replacement Plan 

exceeds the minimum the total cost per acre of disturbance in the Tree Removal Plan.  

 

  

141

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 10 of 15 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Property Legal Description 

 

142

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 11 of 15 

 

143

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 12 of 15 

 

144

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 13 of 15 

 

 

145

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 14 of 15 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

146

Item 8.



 

 

    

City of Dripping Springs  Draft “03.09.2023”  

PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 15 of 15 

 

EXHIBIT I 

Highway 290 Landscape Buffer 

 

147

Item 8.



Exhibit B 
PD Concept/Master/Lotting Plan

148

Item 8.



Exhibit C 
PD Parks, Trails and Open Space

149

Item 8.



 

 

  
  

City of Dripping Springs Draft “D”  
PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 28  
 
 

EXHIBIT E  
Phasing Plan 

 

150

Item 8.



EXHIBIT F 

PD Uses Chart 

 

The uses permitted in PDD – __ are as follows: 

 

Residential Areas: 

 

- Single-Family Dwelling, Detached; 

- Accessory Building/Structure (Residential); 

- Home Occupation; 

- Swimming Pool, Private; 

- Community Center, Private; and  

- Those uses listed in the City's zoning ordinance for SF-3 Districts, or any less intense 

residential district,  are hereby permitted by right within the Project. Uses designated as 

allowed by issuance of  a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) are allowed within the Project upon 

issuance of a CUP  

 

Commercial Areas: 

 

 

- Those uses listed in the City’s zoning ordinance for GR Districts are hereby 

permitted by right within the Project. Uses designated as allowed by issuance of a 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) are allowed within the Project upon issuance of a 

CUP. Land uses not permitted in GR Districts but are permitted in lesser zoning 

districts are not allowed.  

-  

 Notwithstanding, the following uses will not be allowed.  

- Farm Animals 

- Check Cashing Service 

- Telemarketing Center 

- Appliance Repair, unless accessory to appliance retail sales 

- Auto Supply Store 

- Building Material Sales 

- Lawnmower Sales and Repair 

- Live-in Security Quarters 

- Locksmith 

- Major Appliance Repair, unless accessory to appliance retail sales 

- Restaurant (With Drive-Through Service) 

- Tool and Machinery Rental 

- Vacuum Cleaner Sales and Repair 

- Auto Tire Sales and Repair 

- Auto Washing Facility, Attended 

- Auto Washing Facility, Unattended 

- Automobile Repair, Minor 

- Tire Dealer, Indoor Storage 

- Psychic Reading Services 

- Video Rentals/Sales 

151

Item 8.



- Wireless Communication Tower 

- Radio, Television, Microwave Tower 

- Wastewater Treatment Plant 

- Pawnshop 

- Multiple-Family Dwelling 

 

 

 

 

 

152

Item 8.



EXHIBIT G

153

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
54' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
54' R.O.W. LOCAL STREET  TYPICAL SECTION N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTEWATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRY UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" HMAC WITH 8" LIMESTONE BASE WITH 3' EXTENDED BASE BEYOND BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SD (DEPTH VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0' WATER (3' DEPTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WW (5'-8' DEPTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7' LAND SCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. CURB  & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. CURB  & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0' (OD TO OD) GAS (3.5' DEPTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7' LAND SCAPING



 

 

  
  

City of Dripping Springs Draft “D”  
PDD # __ (Gateway Village)  Page 31  
 
 

EXHIBIT H 
Water Quality Buffer Zones 

 

154

Item 8.



Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Project Name: Storserv 

Property Location: 1300 E US 290 

Legal Description: 5.02 acres out of the C.H. Mallot Survey 

Applicant: Victor Ostiguin, Doucet & Associates 

Property Owner: Andrew Bursk  

Request: Zoning amendment from Agriculture “AG” to  

 Commercial Services “CS” 

 

  

Planning & Zoning 

Commission meeting: March 28, 2023 

Project No:  ZA2023-0001 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, AICP, Planning Director 

Item Details 

155

Item 9.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

ZA2022-0007 

 
Background 

While the property is currently in the ETJ, the default zoning district if it is annexed is Agriculture “AG” 

 

Per Ch. 30 Exhibit A, §3.5-3.6 

 AG – Agriculture: The AG, agriculture district is designed to permit the use of land for the 

ranching, propagation and cultivation of crops, small-scale horticultural enterprises, and similar 

uses. Single-family uses on large lots are also appropriate for this district. Territory that has been 

newly annexed into the city is initially zoned agriculture. It is anticipated that some portion of 

agriculturally zoned land may eventually be rezoned to another zoning classification in the future. 

 

The applicant is requesting a zoning amendment to Commercial Services “CS” 

 CS – Commercial Services: The commercial services (CS) district is intended to provide a location 

for commercial and service-related establishments, such as wholesale product sales, welding, and 

contractors shops, plumbing shops, automotive repair or painting services, upholstery shops, and 

other similar commercial uses. Uses in this district may utilize open storage areas that are screened 

from public view. The uses envisioned for the district will typically utilize small sites and have 

operational characteristics that are generally not compatible with residential uses and most other 

types of nonresidential uses within the city. 

 

This request is being heard concurrently with an annexation request for the same property. The applicant is 

that he is requesting annexation and zoning to sell the property. The property is currently being used as the 

owner’s homestead.  

At their meeting on February 21, 2023, the City Council gave direction to staff to proceed with the 

annexation request for the property. This zoning amendment and the annexation are scheduled to be voted 

on by the City Council on April 4, 2023.  

In 2020, the City approved a site development permit for a self storage facility on the property. As part of 

the site development permit, the applicant agreed to follow the lighting ordinance with the City.  

The applicant stated that the purpose for annexation and zoning is to expand the site. If the zoning request 

is approved, the applicant will have to apply for a Conditional Use Permit to expand the use of “self-

storage.”  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

156

Item 9.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

ZA2022-0007 

 
Analysis 

Since the property is currently in the ETJ, staff finds it appropriate to compare ETJ standards with the 

requested zoning district.  

 ETJ CS Differences between  

ETJ & SF-2 

Max Height Not regulated 2 stories / 40 feet Restricted 2 stories / 40 feet 

Min. Lot Size .75 acres* 8,000 square feet 0.57 acres less 

Min. Lot Width 30 feet 80 feet 50 feet more 

Min. Lot Depth unregulated 100 feet 100 feet 

Min. 

Front/Side/Rear 

Yard Setbacks 

10 feet / 5 feet / 5 feet 
25 feet / 15 feet / 25 

feet 
15 feet / 10feet / 20 feet more 

Impervious Cover 35% 70% 35% more 

 

Surrounding Properties 

 

  

 

157

Item 9.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

ZA2022-0007 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are 

outlined in the table below:  

 

 

 

 

 

Approval Criteria for Zoning Amendment (Chapter 30 Zoning, Exhibit A, Sec 2.28.1 and 2.28.2) 

2.28.2 The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council shall consider the following factors: 

 

Factors Staff Comments 

1. whether the proposed change will be 

appropriate in the immediate area 

concerned; 

This zoning change is consistent with existing 

development in the area.  

2. their relationship to the general area and 

the City as a whole; 

This zoning change would allow for various 

office / retail uses and is consistent with 

nearby properties on US 290.  

3. whether the proposed change is in accord 

with any existing or proposed plans for 

providing public schools, streets, water 

supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities 

to the area; 

The property is not within any existing or 

proposed City Plans.  

4. the amount of undeveloped land currently 

classified for similar development in the 

vicinity and elsewhere in the City, and any 

special circumstances which may make a 

substantial part of such undeveloped land 

unavailable for development; 

This request would not make other land 

unavailable for development.   

5. the recent rate at which land is being 

developed in the same zoning 

classification, particularly in the vicinity 

of the proposed change; 

Land with the same zoning classification has 

been developing rapidly.  

6. how other areas designated for similar 

development will be, or are unlikely to be, 

affected if the proposed amendment is 

approved; 

No areas designated for commercial 

development will be affected by this proposed 

amendment.  

7. whether the proposed change treats the 

subject parcel of land in a manner which is 

significantly different from decisions 

made involving other, similarly situated 

parcels; and 

Approval of this zoning amendment would 

not be significantly different from decisions 

made involving other similar parcels.  

8. any other factors which will substantially 

affect the public health, safety, morals, or 

general welfare. 

The rezoning does not negatively affect the 

public health, safety, morals, or general 

welfare.  

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Future Land Use 

North 
PDD (Under 

Consideration) 
Vacant 

Mixed Use 
East CS 

Various 

Commercial 

South ETJ Single-family 

West ETJ 
Mobile Home 

Park 

158

Item 9.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

ZA2022-0007 

 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the zoning amendment as presented. 

Planning and Zoning action: 

2.34.1     The P&Z shall hold a public hearing on a zoning an amendment to the Zoning 

Ordinance. After all public input has been received and the public hearing closed, the P&Z shall 

make its recommendations on the proposed zoning request and concept plan, if submitted, stating 

its findings, its overall evaluation of the request, and its assessment regarding how the request 

relates to the City's Comprehensive Plan. The P&Z may, on its own motion or at the applicant's 

request, defer its decision recommendations until it has had an opportunity to consider other 

information or proposed modifications to the request which may have a direct bearing thereon. If 

the P&Z elects to postpone or defer its hearing on the request, such action shall specifically state 

the time period of the postponement by citing the meeting date whereon the request will reappear 

on the P&Z's agenda. 

 

2.34.2     When the P&Z is ready to act upon the zoning request, it may recommend: 

 

(a)     approval of the request as it was submitted by the applicant; 

 

(b)     approval of the request subject to certain conditions as in the case of a Planned 

Development District (PDD) or a Conditional Use Permit (CUP); or 

 

(c)     disapproval of the request. 

 

2.34.3     The P&Z's recommendation will be automatically forwarded to the City Council for a 

second public hearing thereon. 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs 

were posted on the-site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot 

radius of the site were notified of the zoning map amendment. To date, no letters for or against the request 

have been received.  

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Zoning Amendment Application 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested Zoning Amendment 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the zoning map amendment. 

Budget/Financial Impact: All fees have been paid. 

Public Comments: 
Staff received one written response from a neighbor who has concerns with deed 

restrictions on the property.  

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

159

Item 9.



Civil Engineering - Entitlements - Surveying/Mapping
7401 B. Highway 71 W, Suite 160
Austin, Texas 78735, Phone: (512)-583-2600
www.doucetengineers.com
Firm Registration Number: 3937

5/
22

/2
0

160

Item 9.



City of Dripping Springs 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com 

 

Revised 11.30.2018   Page 1 of 4 
 
 

ZONING/PDD AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
 
 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE____________________ ZIP CODE _________________  

PHONE________________________ EMAIL________________________ 

 

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________ 

COMPANY _______________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE____________________ ZIP CODE _________________  

PHONE________________________ EMAIL________________________ 

 
  
 

Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

REASONS FOR AMENDMENT  

 ☐ TO CORRECT ANY ERROR IN THE REGULATION 
OR MAP 

 ☐ TO RECOGNIZE CHANGES IN TECHNOLOGY, STYLE 
OF LIVING, OR MANNER OF CONDUCTING BUSINESS 

 

 ☐ TO RECOGNIZE CHANGED CONDITIONS OR 
CIRCUMSTANCES IN A PARTICULAR LOCALITY 

 
☐ TO MAKE CHANGES IN ORDER TO IMPLEMENT 
POLICIES REFLECTED WITHIN THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN 

 

161

Item 9.

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
A-A-A Storage Dripping Springs, LLC

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
Austin 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
4203 Spinnaker Cove 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
Texas 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
78731 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
512-452-7789 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
X

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
Mr. Andrew Bursk

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
storserv@austin.rr.com

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
Victor Ostiguin, P.E.

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
Doucet & Associates, Inc.

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
7401B Hwy. 71 W., Ste. 160

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
Austin 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
Texas 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
78735 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
512-566-4076

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
vostiguin@doucetengineers.com



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE? * 
(See attached agreement). 

☐ YES (REQUIRED)* ☐ YES (VOLUNTARY)* ☐ NO* 
 
* If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If proposed 
subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development Agreement or as a 
condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  
Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor Lighting tab 
on the CODS webpage and online Lighting Ordinance under Code of Ordinances tab for more information). 
  

PROPERTY & ZONING INFORMATION 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME  

PROPERTY ADDRESS   

CURRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION  

TAX ID#  

LOCATED IN ☐ CITY LIMITS    

☐ EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION  

CURRENT ZONING  

REQUESTED 
ZONING/AMENDMENT TO PDD 

 

REASON FOR REQUEST 
(Attach extra sheet if necessary) 

 

INFORMATION ABOUT 
PROPOSED USES 
(Attach extra sheet if necessary) 

 

162

Item 9.

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
X

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
Commercial Services  (CS)

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
N/A

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
X

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
1300 E. U.S.  HIGHWAY 290  DRIPPING SPRINGS

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
5.02 ACRE TRACT OUT OF THE C H MALLOT SURVEY NO  299, ABS. 693

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
The project consists of 5 Storage Buildings and an Office Building Totaling 34,600 Sq. Ft on a 5.02 Acre Site with associated Parking, Water Quality, and Utility Improvements.

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
To annex the subject site into city limits along with rezoning the site to Commercial Services. 

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
R85428

kjohnson-hopkins
Text Box
A-A-A Storage Dripping Springs, LLC

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


163

Item 9.



164

Item 9.

mperkins
Typewritten Text
x

mperkins
Typewritten Text
x

mperkins
Typewritten Text
x

mperkins
Typewritten Text
Approved/permitted plan set attached

mperkins
Typewritten Text
x

mperkins
Typewritten Text
x

mperkins
Typewritten Text
x

mperkins
Typewritten Text
x

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



Subdivision Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

SUB2021-0065 Heritage Phase 2 Final Plat CL
Sportsplex Drive (Heritage 
Development)

162 Lots on 69.999 acres, 160 of which are residential 
with an average lot size of 0.143 acres

Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0069 Cannon Ranch Ph 1 Construction Plans CL Cannon Ranch Road
Development of 122 residential lots with public 
roadways, utilities, and drainage features. 

Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0071 Cannon Ranch OffSite Waterline CL Cannon Ranch Road
The construction of an offsite waterline that is 
approximately 4 acres

Approved

SUB2021-0073 Hardy  Preliminary Plat CL 2901 W US 290 41 Residential lots on 39.341 Approved with conditions
SUB2022-0002 Hays Street Subidivision CL 102 Bluff Street Subdivision of 6 residential lots in the Historic District Approved with conditions
SUB2022-0009 Driftwood Subdivision Phase 3 
Preliminary Plat

ETJ 17901 FM 1826
Preliminary Plat for 14 lots: 12 Residential, 1 
Commercial, 1 Industrial

Approved with conditions

SUB2022-0012 Driftwood Sub Ph 3 Sec 1 FP ETJ 17901 FM 1826 Final Plat for 1 Commercial Lot Under Review

SUB2022-0013 Driftwood Sub Ph 3 Sec 2 FP ETJ 17901 FM 1826
FP for 11 single-family residential lots, 1 open space 
lot, and 1 private street lot on 34.67 acres

Under Review

SUB2021-0011 Double L Phase 1 Prelim Plat ETJ 1.5 miles N of US 290 & RR 12 PP for 243 residential units and 1 amenity center Approval with Conditions

SUB2022-0021 Headwaters at BC Phase 3 CP ETJ
Intersection of Hazy Hills Loop and 
Roy Branch Road

Construction Plans Approved with conditions

SUB2022-0023 Overlook at Bunker Ranch CP CL 2004 Creek Road
Construction Plans for 12 single family lots with 1 
drainage lot

Approved with conditions

SUB2022-0028 Parten Ranch Phase 8 ETJ
End of Bird Hollow near Trickling 
Brook Road Intersection

90 Lot Subdivision Approved with conditions

SUB2022-0031 Patriots Hall AP ETJ 231 Patriots Hall Blvd Combining the existing 4 lots into 1 lot Recorded with the County
SUB2022-0033 The Ranch at Caliterra ETJ Premier Park Loop Preliminary plat of the Carter tract with 243 lots Approved with conditions
SUB2022-0036 Driftwood Creek FM 150 12 Treated 
Effluent and 10 Raw Wastewater Forcemains Ph I and II

ETJ FM 150
12 inch treated effluent line and 10 inch wastewater 
forcemains to connect with Dripping Springs WWTP

Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2022-0039 Village Grove Preliminary Plat CL Sports Park Rd
Village Grove PDD. This is 112.40 acres including 207 
lots, 511 residential units, and 6.82 acres will be 
commercial

Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2022-0040 102 S Bluff St CP CL Hays st
Construction Plans for 7 lots. Six of wich are residential 
and 1 will be landscaping

Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2022-0041 Hays St Preliminary Plat CL Hays st
Preliminary Plat for 7 lots. Six of wich are residential 
and 1 will be landscaping

Approved with conditions

SUB2022-0042 Silver Creek Subdivision ETJ Silver Creek Rd
70-acre tract to be developed into a 28 single family 
lots with access, paving, on-site sewage, water supply 
well, and an undisturbed open space

Under Review

SUB2022-0043 Howard Ranch Sec 4 Lots 62 & 63 AP ETJ 590 Cypress Creek Dr
An amending plat to remove a site parking area from 
the single family lot. This request is by the property 
owner.

Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2022-0045 Ellington Estates MP ETJ 206 Darden Hill Rd Legalizing the lot Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2022-0046 Kali Kate ETJ 4550 FM 967
City of Dripping Springs and City of Buda Interlocal 
Agreement

Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2022-0047 Ariza West 290 ETJ 13900 W US Highway 290 The Final Plat for an apartment complex Waiting for Resubmittal
SUB2022-0048 Wild Ridge Phase 1 CP CL E US 290 Construction plans for phase 1 of Wild Ridge Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2022-0049 Serenity Hills ETJ
1111 HAYS COUNTRY ACRES 
ROAD

50 Lot subdivision in Dripping Springs ETJ Approved with conditions

SUB2022-0050 North 40, Section 2, Block B, Lots 1, 2, 
29, and 30

CL 28501 RR 12 Amending Plat to combine 4 lots into 1 Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2022-0052 Village Grove Phase 1 CP CL Sports Park Rd
The construction plans for phase 1 of the Village Grove 
development

Under Review

SUB2023-0001 Village Grove Phase 2B CP CL Sports Park Rd
Residential townhome infrastructure improvements. 
Construction of 16 Townhome lots and roadways.

Waiting for Resubmittal

SUB2021-0001 Roger Hanks Parkway Extension CL Roger Hanks
3120 LF of Collector Roadway. The infrastructure 
includes all associated streets, grading, and water 
quality improvements.

Approved

SUB2023-0003 The Ranch at Caliterra CP ETJ Soaring Hill Rd at HC Carter Way Construction Plans for the Carter tract. Waiting for Resubmittal
SUB2023-0004 Re-subdivision of Lot 2, Driftwood 967 
Phase One

ETJ FM 967 at FM 1826
Subdividing 1 lot to 11 lots to be part of the Driftwood 
Development

Under Review

SUB2023-0005 Skylight Hills Prelim ETJ 13001 & 13111 High Sierra Creating 11 residential lots in the ETJ Under Review

SUB2023-0006 Wild Ridge Phase 1 FP CL E US 290
Approximately 62.1 acres to include 136 residential 
lots, roadways, and a commercial lot

Under Review

SUB2023-0007 Skylight Hills Construction Plans ETJ 13001 & 13111 High Sierra Creating the infrastructure of 11 residential lots Under Review
SUB2023-0008 Silver Creek Subdivision Construction 
Plans

ETJ Silver Creek Rd
29 Single family residential lots with access, paving, 
OSSF, water supply well, and open space

Under Review

165

Item 10.



Site Development Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

SD2021-0005 Dripping Springs WWTP Expansion CL 23127 FM 150 W Expansion of the Wastewater treatment plant Under Review 

SD2021-0021 RR 12 Commercial Kitchen CL 28707 RR 12
Commercial kitchen that will support a catering 
business, no on-site dining is proposed

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2021-0013 Dreamland ETJ Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0030 Belterra Townhomes ETJ Belterra
Seven townhome units with associated parking, 
sidewalk, utilities, and drainage

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0033 Bell Springs Business Park, Sec 1&2 
Rev

ETJ 4955 Bell Springs
A revision for minor adjustments on site layouts, 
rainwater, and overall drainage & water quality

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0001 Julep Commercial Park ETJ
Northeast corner of W US 290 and 
Trautwein Rd

11.27 acre site of mixed-use commercial buildings with 
supporting driveways, water quality and detention 
pond, rainwater harvesting, and other utilities

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0010 Wenty's Wine Bar ETJ 5307 Bell Springs Rd Wine bar and associated improvements Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0007 Heritage Effluent Line Stage II Extension CL 511 Mercer Street

Extension of the existing 12" effluent line north along 
RR12, along with an 8" effluent line that spans from 
Rob Shelton, across Hwy 290, and north to Heritage 
Stage 2

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0008 Patriot's Hall Phase 1B ETJ 231 Patriots Hall Blvd
New Patriot's Hall event building with parking, 
infrastructure and
water quality

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0013 DS Flex Business Park CL 28513 RR 12
Construction of two shell buildings with accompanying 
site improvements

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0011 Skybridge Academy CL 519 Old Fitzhugh Road
Remodel/repurpose of exisiting historic structures, add 
new construction to tie together the house and garage 
with additional parking and revised driveway

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2022-0014 Bell Springs Site Plan (Travis Flake) ETJ 5307 Bell Springs Rd
Office and Warehouse with drives, parking, waterline 
connection, and pond

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2022-0016 JWLP Lot 6 Revision 1 CL 249 Sportsplex Drive Revision to the original site plan Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0018 Office 49 ETJ 241 Frog Pond Lane
The construction of eleven office buildings of varying 
sizes along with the related
paving, grading, drainage, and utility improvements.

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0019 Double L Ranch, Phase 1 ETJ RR 12
Construction of water, wastewater, drainage and paving 
improvements for 244 single family lots.

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0020 Merigian Studios ETJ 105 Daisy Lane
Art studio with driveway, parking, and external 
structures

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2022-0022 Belterra Medical Office ETJ 164 Belterra Village Way
Medical office building with associated parking, 
sidewalk, utility and drainage improvements

Under Review 

SD2022-0023 Christian Automotive ETJ 100 N. Canyonwood Drive
Construction of an approximately 6,000 square feet of 
light automotive facility

In Administrative Completeness

SD2022-0024 4400 US 290 SP ETJ 4400 US 290 7 Commercial Buildings in the ETJ Approved w/ Conditions

SD2022-0025 Hardy Drive ETJ 2901 US 290
Construction of a road for the Hardy and Bunker Ranch 
development to meet fire code

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0027 Sawyer Ranch Lot 3A CL 13341 W US 290
Lot 3A of the Sawyer Ranch at US 290 development. 
This consists of commercial buildings with parking, 
sidewalks, and utilies.

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2022-0029 Headwaters Commercial East Phase 1 
SP

CL Headwaters Blvd.

Development of a preschool with associated utility 
infrastructure, storm infrastructure, parking lot 
improvements, and a water quality/detention pond that 
accounts for future developments

Under Review 

SD2022-0031 WHIM Corporate Site Plan CL 27950 RR12
The construction of the corporate HQ for WHIM along 
with the site improvements needed and as shown in 
the site plan.

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0032 Driftwood Ranch Clubhouse ETJ 17901 FM 1826 Clubhouse buildings and parking Under Review 
SD2022-0033 Hays County ESD EMS Station 72 - 
Heritage Oaks

ETJ 1 Heritage Oaks Drive New ESD EMS Station Approved

SD2022-0035 100 Daisy Lane Site Plan ETJ 100 Daisy Lane
A metal building for manufacturing, office, storage, 
tasting room for a distillery and associated paving

Approved

SD2022-0036 Hays County ESD EMS Station 73 - RR 
12

ETJ 31331 RR 12 New ESD EMS Station Approved

SD2022-0037 Burlebo ETJ 149 American Way
Warehouse/office for business and distribution 
operation of Burlebo

Under Review 

SD2022-0038 CAK Capital Office Building CL 28496 Ranch Road 12 Site improvements for future detached office building Under Review 

SD2022-0039 Big Sky Ranch WWTP CL Sue Peaks Loop
Temporary Wastewater Treament Plan and subsurface 
area drip disposal system to serve Big Sky 
Development

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2022-0041 Dripping Springs Urgent Care CL 164 Belterra Village Way
Ground up development of an urgent care facility within 
the Belterra Commercial District

Under Review 

SD2022-0042 Suds Brothers Car Wash CL 610 W Hwy 290 Rapid car wash facility Under Review 
SD2022-0043 Tiger Lane Office Complex CL Tiger Lane Office complex with potential for food trucks Under Review 
SD2023-0001 Arrowhead Ranch Offsite Wastewater 
Extension

CL Arrowhead Ranch
To connect the existing wastewater improvements from 
Arrowhead to the City wastewater system.

Under Review 

SD2023-0002 Fitzhugh Corners ETJ 15310 Fitzhugh Road A 13,908 sq ft building with site improvements Waiting on resubmittal

SD2023-0003 Dutch Bros Coffee ETJ 12400 US Hwy. 290
Revision to the Ledgestone Commercial East Site Plan 
specifically for Dutch Bros Coffee

Under Review 

SD2023-0004 Austin Ridge Bible Church Revision ETJ 31330 Ranch Road 12
Revmoval of the existing old house, the addition of 3 
portable buildings and pavilion; additional parking.

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2023-0005 DGRC Creek Phase 1 WQ Pond Revision ETJ Thurman Roberts Way Driftwood Water Quality pond revision In Administrative Completeness

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL PROJECTS

2
166

Item 10.



Site Development Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

SD2023-0006 DS Vet Clinic CL Cortaro Dr & RR 12
2 Phase Site Development Plan with 3,957sf 
veterinarian clinic with paving, drainage and utility 
infrastructure

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2023-0007 Phase 4A Drip Irrigation System 
Improvements

ETJ 2581 E Hwy 290
The project is Phase 4A of the drip disposal fields and 
consists of 14.76 acres of drip irrigation fields only.

Under Review 

SD2023-0008 102 Rose Drive CL 102 Rose Dr
Construction of tow additional duplexes w/ 
accompanying site improvments

Under Review 

SD2023-0009 Paloma CL 235 Sports Park Rd Adding improvements to the site Under Review 

SD2023-0010 Creek Road Horse Farms CL/ETJ 1225 Creek Rd
Horse training facility with covered riding arena, barn, 
storage building and open-air riding.

Under Review 

3
167

Item 10.



Comprehensive 
Plan

Gateway Village

Cannon Mixed-
Use

Ongoing Projects

Meetings with DTJ

Planning and Zoning Commission review on March 
28th and City Council on April 4th.

Back and forth comments

168

Item 10.


	Top
	Item 1.	PZC: 02.28.23 PZC Minutes
	02.28.23 PZC Minutes_draft

	Item 2.	SUB2022-0012c Driftwood Sub Ph 3 Sec 1 FP
	SUB2022-0012 Staff Report
	SUB2022-0012 Application
	SUB2022-0012 Plat

	Item 3.	SUB2022-0013c Driftwood Sub Ph 3 Sec 2 FP
	SUB2022-0013 Staff Report
	SUB2022-0013 Application
	SUB2022-0013 Plat

	Item 4.	SUB2023-0005 Skylight Hills Preliminary Plat
	SUB2022-0005 Staff Report
	SUB2023-0005 Comments
	SUB2023-0005 Preliminary Plat
	SUB2023-0005 Application

	Item 5.	SUB2023-0006 Wild Ridge Phase 1 Final Plat
	SUB2023-0006 StaffReport
	SUB2023-0006 Application
	SUB2023-0006 Comments
	SUB2023-0006 FinalPlat

	Item 6.	SUB2023-0004 Driftwood 967, PH 1, Lot 2 Replat
	SUB2023-0004 StaffReport
	SUB2023-0004 Comments
	SUB2023-0004 Application
	SUB2023-0004 Replat

	Item 7.	CUP2023-0001 WHIM Office/Warehouse
	CUP2023-0001 P&Z Staff report
	CUP2023-0001 Application
	CUP2023-0001 Architectural Plans

	Item 8.	PDD2021-0004 Gateway Village P&Z Action
	1. StaffReport PZ Action
	2. PDD Ordinance
	3. Exhibit B Gateway Village - Concept Plan 2023-03-06_11x17
	4. Exhibit C Gateway Village - Parkland Exhibit 2023-03-06_11x17
	5. Exhibit E Gateway Village - Phasing Plan
	6. Exhibit F Gateway Village  - PD Uses Chart
	7. Exhibit G Village Grove - Street Standards
	8. Exhibit H Gateway Village - WQBZ

	Item 9.	ZA2023-0001 - Storserv
	ZA2023-0001 StaffReport PZ
	ZA2021-0001 Existing Site Plan
	ZA2021-0001 Application

	Item 10.	Planning Department Report
	Planning Dept Report 3.23.23

	Bottom

